
 

 

Education Consultative Forum  
AGENDA 
 
 
DATE: 
 

Monday 7 November 2011 
 

TIME: 
 

7.30 pm 
 

VENUE: 
 

Committee Rooms 1 & 2,  
Harrow Civic Centre 
 

 
 
PRE-MEETINGS: HTCC - 6.45 pm - CR 6, Governors - 6.45 pm - CR3,  

Members - 7.00 pm - CR 1/2 
 
 
 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3 representatives of each side) 
   
  Chairman: 

 
Councillor Brian Gate  

 
  Councillors: 

 
Raj Ray 
Zarina Sheikh 
Krishna Suresh 
 

Husain Akhtar 
Mrs Camilla Bath 
Janet Mote 
 

  
 

  
Reserve Members: 

 
1. Ben Wealthy 
2. Kairul Kareema Marikar 
3. Nizam Ismail 
4. Krishna James 
 

1. Christine Bednell 
2. Ramji Chauhan 
3. Lynda Seymour 
 

  
 

  
 
  (Education Side Representatives overleaf) 



 
 

 
 
 

Contact:  Mark Doherty, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:  020 8416 8050    E-mail:  mark.doherty@harrow.gov.uk 

 

 

Education Side Representatives: 
 
 
Teachers’ Constituency:  (nominated by Harrow Teachers’ Consultative Committee) 
 
Ms A Drew 
Ms C Gembala 
 

Ms J Lang 
Ms L Money 
 

Ms L Rowlands 
Ms L Snowdon (VC) 
 

 
Governors’ Constituency:  (nominated by Association of Harrow Governing Bodies) 
 
Mrs C Millard 
Mr N Ransley 
 

Mr K Sochall 
Ms H Solanki 
 

(Vacancy) 
(Vacancy) 
 

 
Elected Parent Governors: 
 
1. Mrs Aamirah Khan  

(secondary sector) 
2. (Vacancy) 

  
 
Denominational Representatives:   
 
1. Mrs J Rammelt 2. Reverend P Reece   



 

Education Consultative Forum - 7 November 2011 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS    
 
 To note the appointment of Mrs Aamirah Khan as a Secondary Sector Parent 

Governor Member of the Education Consultative Forum. 
 

2. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
 To receive apologies for absence (if any). 

 
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from business to 

be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Forum; 
(b) all other Members present in any part of the room. 
 

5. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 2011 be taken as read and signed 

as a correct record. 
 

6. MATTERS ARISING    
 
 To consider any matters arising from the last meeting. 

 
7. PUBLIC QUESTIONS    
 
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents or organisations under the 

provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 51 (Part 4D of the Constitution). 
 

8. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 49 (Part 4D of the Constitution). 
 



 

Education Consultative Forum - 7 November 2011 

9. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 50 

(Part 4D of the Constitution). 
 

10. PRIMARY SCHOOL EXPANSION PROGRAMME AND RELATED SCHOOL 
ORGANISATION ISSUES   (Pages 9 - 60) 

 
 Report of the Corporate Director of Children’s Services. 

 
11. INFORMATION REPORT - LOCAL AUTHORITY STRATEGIC ROLE FOR 

EDUCATION IN HARROW - UPDATE PAPER   (Pages 61 - 72) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director of Children’s Services. 

 
12. INFORMATION REPORT - OUTCOMES OF RISING 5 AND 11+ ALLOCATIONS 

FOR 2011-12   (Pages 73 - 80) 
 
 Report of the Head of Education Strategy and School Organisation. 

 
13. INFORMATION REPORT - ACADEMIES UPDATE   (Pages 81 - 86) 
 
 Report of the Head of Education Strategy and School Organisation. 

 
14. INFORMATION REPORT - HARROW PUPILS' ATTAINMENT AND PROGRESS: 

SUMMER 2011 (PROVISIONAL)   (Pages 87 - 94) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director of Children’s Services. 

 
15. INFORMATION REPORT - THE NEW INSPECTION FRAMEWORK FOR 

SCHOOLS: JANUARY 2012   (Pages 95 - 100) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director of Children’s Services. 

 
16. DATE OF NEXT MEETING    
 
 To note that the next meeting of the Forum is due to be held on 25 January 2012. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
 



 

 Education Consultative Forum - 27 June 2011 - 1 - 

 
 
 

EDUCATION CONSULTATIVE FORUM   
MINUTES 

 

27 JUNE 2011 
 
 
Chairman: * Councillor Brian Gate 
   
Councillors: * Husain Akhtar 

* Christine Bednell (1) 
* Zarina Khalid 
 

* Kairul Marikar (2) 
* Janet Mote 
  Raj Ray 
 

Teachers’ 
Constituency: 
 

† Ms A Drew 
† Ms C Gembala 
  Ms J Lang 
 

*  Ms L Money 
† Ms L Rowlands 
  Ms L Snowdon 
 

Governors’ 
Constituency: 
 

*  Mrs C Millard 
† Mr N Ransley 
 

† Mr K Sochall 
† Ms H Solanki 
 

Elected Parent 
Governor 
Representatives: 
 

(Vacancy) 
 

(Vacancy) 
 
 

Denominational 
Representatives: 
 

*  Mrs J Rammelt 
 

† Reverend P Reece 
 

* Denotes Member present 
(1), (2) Denotes category of Reserve Members 
† Denotes apologies received 
 

42. Attendance by Reserve Members   
 
RESOLVED:  To note the attendance of the following duly constituted 
Reserve Members: 
  
Ordinary Member 
  

Reserve Member 
Councillor Camilla Bath Councillor Christine Bednell 
Councillor Krishna Suresh Councillor Kairul Marikar 

Agenda Item 5 
Pages 1 to 8 

1



 

- 2 -  Education Consultative Forum - 27 June 2011 

 
43. Apologies for Absence   

 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Krishna Suresh, Ms 
Drew, Ms Gembala, Ms Rowlands, Mr Ransley, Reverend Reece and Mr 
Sochall. 
 

44. Declarations of Interest   
 
RESOLVED:  That the following interests were declared: 
 
Agenda Item: 10. INFORMATION REPORT - Local Authority Strategic Role 
for Education in Harrow; 11. School Expansion Programme; 12. 
INFORMATION REPORT – Update on the Potential Conversion of Seven 
High Schools to Academy Status; 13. INFORMATION REPORT - SEN and 
Disability Green Paper; 14. INFORMATION REPORT - Capital Update; 15. 
INFORMATION REPORT - Department for Education Consultation on School 
Funding Reform; 16. Consultation on the Changes to the Admissions 
Framework 
 
Councillor Christine Bednell declared personal interests in that she was a 
Governor of Vaughan Primary and Whitmore High Schools.  She would 
remain in the room during the discussions and decision making on these 
items. 
 
Councillor Brian Gate declared personal interests in that he was a Governor 
of St Dominic’s (RC) Sixth Form College and Appointee Governor of St John’s 
Primary School.  He would remain in the room during the discussions and 
decision making on these items. 
 
Councillor Husain Akhtar declared personal interests in that he was a 
Governor of Norbury, Grange First and Grange Middle schools.  He would 
remain in the room during the discussions and decision making on these 
items. 
 
Councillor Kairul Marikar declared personal interests in that she was a 
Governor for Bentley Wood High School and Shaftsbury High School.  She 
would remain in the room during the discussions and decision making on 
these items. 
 
Councillor Janet Mote declared personal interests in that she was a Governor 
of St John Fisher Catholic Primary school.  She would remain in the room 
during the discussions and decision making on these items. 
 
Mrs C Millard declared a personal interest in that she was a Governor of 
Grange Middle, Cannon Lane Middle and Nower Hill High schools.  She 
would remain in the room during the discussions and decision making on 
these items. 
 

45. Appointment of Vice-Chairman   
 
RESOLVED:  That the Appointment of Vice-Chairman be deferred to the next 
meeting of the Forum. 
 

2



 

Education Consultative Forum - 27 June 2011 - 3 - 

46. Minutes   
 
RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the special meeting held on 1 March 2011 
and the ordinary meeting held on 6 April 2011 be taken as read and signed as 
a correct record. 
 

47. Matters Arising   
 
There were no matters arising. 
 

48. Public Questions, Petitions and Deputations   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that no public questions were put, or petitions or 
deputations received. 
 
RECOMMENDED ITEMS   
 

49. School Expansion Programme   
 
An officer introduced a report which set out a proposal for a School Expansion 
Programme as part of the School Place Planning Strategy 2010-2013.  He 
advised that: 
 
• the plan was being devised to meet the projected demand for school 

places in Harrow; 
 
• three key aspects of the School Expansion Programme were: 
 

o Permanent places - To expand some existing schools within the 
borough; 

 
o Temporary places - To plan bulge classes in existing schools; 
 
o Contingency Places - To highlight existing schools that could cater 

for additional bulge classes should they become necessary; 
 
• it was proposed that an additional 6-8 permanent forms of entry would be 

established in the primary sector by 2016; 
 
• officers would contact Governing Bodies to discuss the permanent 

expansion of their school; 
 
• a meeting for Chairs of Governing Bodies and Headteachers would be 

held on 6 July 2011 to discuss the proposals. 
 
In response to questions, officers advised that: 

 
• eight additional bulge classes were established for the current Academic 

year to cater for the unprecedented demand for school places in the 
primary sector; 

 
• London Councils estimated that approximately 70,000 additional 

permanent school places would need to be found over the next four 
years across London.  The reason for the increased demand was 

3



 

- 4 -  Education Consultative Forum - 27 June 2011 

unknown and exceeded any projections.  Possible factors included 
parents choosing state funded schools for their children rather than 
private funded schools; 

 
• each permanent expansion would have a capital implication.  It was 

anticipated the cost of permanent expansion would be spread over a 
number of financial years as it will take time for the expansion to work its 
way through the school; 

 
• the total number of pupils in the borough was approximately 26,000. 
 
Members commented that: 
 
• Harrow was known for its good education;  
 
• the introduction of Academies and Free Schools could complicate 

choices for parents; 
 
• school place planning was an inexact science.  The planning was 

complex and there were many aspects to it.  Some areas could require 
more permanent places because of new housing developments 
concentrated in some areas; 

 
• bulge classes may be used to meet demand as it arises, but it was hard 

for the school to plan long-term. 
 
RESOLVED:  To Recommend (to Cabinet): That 
 
1) the Forum’s comments on the proposal for a School Expansion 

Programme be noted, and that the following key aspects of the 
Programme be forwarded to Cabinet for consideration; 

 
o Permanent places - To expand some existing schools within the 

borough; 
 
o Temporary places - To plan bulge classes in existing schools; 
 
o Contingency Places - To highlight existing schools that could cater 

for additional bulge classes should they become necessary. 
 
Reason for Recommendation:  To ensure that sufficient places are available 
to fulfil the Local Authority’s statutory responsibilities. 
 
RESOLVED ITEMS   
 

50. INFORMATION REPORT - Local Authority’s Strategic Role for Education 
in Harrow   
 
An officer introduced a report which provided the Forum with an update 
regarding the future strategic role of the Council for education in Harrow.  She 
advised that: 
 
• the Department for Education’s (DfE) Schools’ White Paper and 

Education Bill propose to change the need for Admissions and 
4



 

Education Consultative Forum - 27 June 2011 - 5 - 

Consultative Forums for example.  It was necessary to examine whether 
the organisational structure was suitably fit for purpose; 

 
• because there was an ongoing period of change, the annexe to the 

report was a dynamic document which changed frequently.  Officers 
would keep a watching brief on the progress of legislation changes and 
provide updates through the relevant channels; 

 
In response to questions, officers advised that: 
 
• no schools were causing concern in relation to Ofsted Reports.  Officers 

were continually striving to improve working partnerships; 
 
• teams designed to support schools with preparations for Ofsted 

inspections would continue under HSIP; 
 
• HSIP was unique in the country and had attracted a lot of positive 

attention both nationally and from the DfE; 
 
• nine schools had confirmed that they would be closed due to strike 

action taking place on 30 June 2011. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 

51. INFORMATION REPORT - Update on the Potential Conversion of Seven 
High Schools to Academy Status   
 
An officer introduced a report which updated the Forum on the conversion of 
seven High Schools to Academies.  He advised that: 
 
• the Governing Bodies of seven schools in the Borough had decided to 

seek Academy status.  These schools were Bentley Wood, Canons High, 
Harrow High, Hatch End, Nower Hill, Park High, and Rooks Heath 
College.  They were expected to receive their new status on 1 August 
2011; 

 
• the terms and conditions of approximately 1,400 staff involved in the 

transition to Academy Status were protected under Transfer of 
Undertakings Protection of Employment (TUPE); 

 
• the Council’s Legal and Planning departments were working on the 

transfer of land from the school sites; 
 
• as these schools were the first Academies in Harrow, the emphasis was 

very much on getting it right and making the transition as smooth as 
possible. 

 
In response to questions, the officer advised that: 
 
• no primary schools were actively seeking Academy status at this stage, 

although the progress being made was being monitored very closely by 
some primary schools in the borough; 

 

5



 

- 6 -  Education Consultative Forum - 27 June 2011 

• the cost to some primary schools may rise marginally, however the 
services and quality would improve across all Harrow’s schools. 

 
The Chairman stated that the Council was committed to supporting all 
Academies.  Work would be done to ensure that the strong partnership and 
high standard of excellence in education would be maintained.  It was agreed 
by the Chairman that a letter be drafted to all newly established Academy 
schools commending them on their new status. 
 
RESOLVED:  The report be noted. 
 

52. INFORMATION REPORT - SEN and Disability Green Paper   
 
An officer introduced a report which provided information on the 
Government’s Green Paper titled Support and Aspiration: A new Approach to 
Special Educational Needs and Disability.  He advised that the main 
proposals contained within the Green Paper included: 
 
• involving parents in the assessment process to grant them more control 

of funding the support for their child’s needs; 
 
• replacing Special Need Statements with a single, more holistic plan; 
 
• abolishing the School Action and School Action Plus system and 

replacing with a simpler school based category to assist teachers in 
focussing on raising attainment; 

 
• allowing greater independence from Local Authorities in assessments by 

investigating whether voluntary groups could coordinate the package of 
support; 

 
• providing parents with a greater choice of school and allowing parents 

and community groups the ability to establish special free schools. 
 
In response to questions, the officer advised that: 
 
• Shaftsbury High School had been involved in discussions surrounding 

transferring to Academy status, but had decided not to pursue this 
course of action at this stage.  As one of only four Special Needs 
Schools in Harrow, there was concern over the potential future 
conversion of the school as the Borough was highly dependent the 
service they provide; 

 
• the establishment of Hillingdon Manor, an independent school which 

provided specialist education for children with Autistic Spectrum 
Disorders, demonstrated that free schools devised for a special 
educational purpose could be beneficial for the borough; 

 
• a response to the Green Paper would be circulated to Members of the 

Forum once finalised. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 

6



 

Education Consultative Forum - 27 June 2011 - 7 - 

53. INFORMATION REPORT - Capital Update   
 
An officer introduced a report which outlined progress in the 2011/12 Capital 
Programme for Schools.  She advised that: 
 
• several business cases, including amalgamation and rebuild projects, 

had been approved and signed off by all relevant parties; 
 
• all current projects were on target, with critical projects due to be 

completed over the summer period; 
 
• the Capital Strategy for Harrow was currently under review.  A new 

regime for Council Capital was due to be established which could 
provide greater access to Capital funding for schools projects. 

 
Members commended the officer and her team for the work they had 
undertaken, in particular the progress made with the potential expansion of 
Marlborough Primary School. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 

54. INFORMATION REPORT - Department for Education Consultation on 
School Funding Reform   
 
An officer introduced a report which updated the Forum on the proposals 
contained within the Department for Education (DfE) consultation document 
regarding the introduction of a new national school funding regime.  She 
advised that: 
 
• the school funding regime would apply to all schools including 

maintained, academies and free schools; 
 

• the first of two consultation documents focussed on underlying principles.  
The second, which would detail more complex areas such as Special 
Educational Needs, was expected later this year; 

 
• proceeding with a national funding system for schools would decrease 

the responsibility for Local Authorities with regards to funding.  This 
raised particular issues surrounding the future of the Schools Forum, 
which was not addressed in the consultation paper; 

 
• it was envisaged that the new funding regime would be implemented by 

2014.  More information would become available later in the year. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 

55. Consultation on the Changes to the Admissions Framework   
 
An officer introduced a report which provided a draft response to the 
Government’s consultation on the changes to the Admissions Framework.  He 
advised that: 
 
• the consultation commenced on 27 May 2011 and was due to close on 

19 August 2011; 
7



 

- 8 -  Education Consultative Forum - 27 June 2011 

 
• the Government intended to publish its response to the consultation by 

the end of September 2011, with a view to the revised Admission Code 
and Admission Appeals Code coming into practice in 2012; 

 
• the Government stated that the intention was to simplify the Codes and 

make them easier to understand. 
 
In response to questions, officers advised that: 
 
• once agreed, the new Admissions Code would need to be strictly 

adhered to in terms of the minimum distance requirement.  Parents 
would have the opportunity to be placed on waiting lists for their 
preferred schools or could appeal against the decision to refuse their 
child entry.  If the Authority’s decision to refuse a child entry resulted in 
an Appeal, it would be a decision for an independent Education 
Admissions Appeals Panel to determine whether the decision to refuse 
entry was unreasonable, or whether a mistake had been made in 
applying the criteria; 

 
• a distance criteria of up to two miles applied to in year school 

applications.  The decision would be taken to a Fair Access Panel if this 
distance was exceeded; 

 
• Harrow continued to adopt the sibling link criteria.  The decision to adopt 

this criterion would be a decision for each Academy, and not the 
Authority. 

 
In response to questions contained within the consultation paper, Members 
stated that: 
 
• although increasing Published Admission Numbers for ‘popular’ and 

‘successful’ schools could have a positive short-term impact, fears were 
raised that the opinion of parents concerning the popularity of schools 
had the potential to change over time; 

 
• the Pupil Premium for England was set at £430.  This did not take into 

account the higher cost of living in certain areas of the country. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the response to the Government’s consultation on 
changes to the Admissions Framework be noted, and the Forum’s comments 
be considered for inclusion in the final response. 
 

56. Date of Next Meeting   
 
RESOLVED:  That the next meeting of the Forum would take place on 7 
November 2011. 
 
(Note:  The meeting, having commenced at 7.32 pm, closed at 9.20 pm). 
 
 
 
(Signed) COUNCILLOR BRIAN GATE 
Chairman 

8



 

 
REPORT FOR: 
 

EDUCATION 
CONSULTATIVE FORUM 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

7 November 2011 

Subject: 
 

Primary School Expansion Programme 
and Related School Organisation Issues 

Key Decision: 
 

No 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Catherine Doran, Corporate Director 
Children’s Services 
 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Brian Gate, Portfolio Holder for 
Schools and Colleges 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Decision subject to 
Call-in: 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

Annexe A: Primary School Expansion 
Programme Consultation Document and 
Background Papers 1-3 

 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report provides information on the Council’s primary school expansion 
programme and related school organisation issues including proposals for 
secondary school strategy, up-dates on free schools and academies, and 
school admissions. 
 
Recommendations:  
The Education Consultative Forum is invited to note this report and offer 
comments. 
 
 

Agenda Item 10 
Pages 9 to 60 

9



 
 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Introduction 
 
1. The local authority has a statutory responsibility to provide sufficient 

school places for its area.  There are several key strands to delivering 
sufficient school places.  This report provides information on the 
Primary School Expansion Strategy, planning for the Harrow 
secondary school strategy, current developments with free schools and 
academies, and admissions. 

 
Primary School Expansion Strategy 
 
2. In July 2011, Cabinet agreed a school expansion programme as part of 

the school place planning strategy.  The strategy aims to secure 
sufficient primary school places through the creation of additional 
permanent places, supplemented by planned bulge classes and 
contingency bulge classes that will be opened if required. 

 
Estimated Expansion 

3. Harrow Council commissions the Greater London Authority (GLA) to 
provide pupil projections.  The borough is divided into 6 planning areas 
for the purpose of primary school place planning.  5 planning areas are 
geographic and 1 planning area contains all the voluntary aided 
schools.  The projections for each planning area were used to estimate 
the number of additional reception places required.  Overall the 
projections indicate that there will be 2,851 pupils requiring a reception 
place in September 2017.  This is the predicted peak of the demand.  
There are currently 2,550 permanent reception places in Harrow.  
Using the projections and a planning factor of 5%, at the peak of the 
increase, it is estimated that up to 15 additional forms of entry would 
be required.  Without the planning factor, this equates to approximately 
an additional 11 reception classes. (Detailed projections are available 
at Annexe A, Background Paper 1.) 

 
Representative Headteacher Working Group 

4. A representative group of primary headteachers was established to 
work with officers to develop the primary school expansion programme 
and ensure that there was an on-going dialogue with schools about the 
programme.  The group met on three occasions.  The group developed 
a set of guiding principles to identify schools for potential expansion.  
The principles covered a range of factors including school site and 
building capacity, quality of education, popularity and location.  These 
were then applied to schools to indicate which schools would be most 
suitable to consider for expansion.  The group also advised officers on 
the consultation mechanisms and provided feedback to the Primary 
Headteachers’ Executive. 

 
 
 
 

10



 
Consultation 

5. In accordance with the Place Planning Strategy, a consultation was 
launched on 10 October 2011 and will close on 11 November 2011.  
The consultation is seeking views on a set of proposals affecting 
schools across Harrow.  Consultees include all schools in Harrow, 
Diocesan and faith organisations, neighbouring local authorities and 
interested parties, including MPs and voluntary sector organisations. 

 
6. The consultation document sets out the challenge for Harrow to meet 

in respect of increased demand for school places and proposes 
permanent expansion of 11 schools from September 2013.  This would 
be preceded by temporary expansion from September 2012.  
Following further consideration of the projections and the experience of 
managing bulge year groups, there has been an increase in the 
number of proposed permanent expansions.  This would provide 
greater certainty for both schools and parents and it is believed will be 
a sustainable level of increased places. 

 
7. The following documents have been published for the consultation and 

copies of these documents are at Annexe A.  
• Detailed consultation document and response form 
• Background Paper 1 – Demographic Information 
• Background Paper 2 – Map of the Borough  
• Background Paper 3 – Schools by Planning Area 

 
Capital 

8. There are considerable capital implications in the proposals for 
expansion.  During the consultation, school site feasibility studies will 
be completed for those schools proposed for expansion.  This will 
provide an expansion solution for the schools, a phased capital 
programme and an indication of capital investment.  

 
9. Capital funding for the expansion programme will be available from: 
 

• The government’s funding to local authorities for schools. 
Although the details for 2012-13 are yet to finalised, it is assumed 
that the funding will be similar to the funding for 2011-12 which 
was £7m.  

 
• As part of the Council’s budget making process, contingency 

funding is being proposed in case government funding is not 
sufficient at any point. 

 
• In July 2011 the Government launched the Priority School 

Building Programme to rebuild approximately 200 of the schools 
in the poorest condition across the country through a privately 
financed programme.  Working with schools meeting the 
threshold for the poorest condition, officers have submitted 
applications for 11 schools.  Where these schools are proposed 
for expansion, although this is subject to consultation and Cabinet 
decisions, the submissions are for expanded schools.  The 
applications were submitted on 14 October 2011.  The 
government will announce in December which schools are invited 

11



 
to the next stage.  The application at this stage does not 
constitute formal commitment from the schools or the 
government.  There are few details on this scheme, but it has 
been considered that an application at this stage constitutes an 
expression of interest and recognition of a need to address the 
most serious condition issues.  This initiative may provide an 
opportunity to expand any Harrow school that makes a successful 
application. 

 
Next Steps 

10. At the end of the consultation, all responses will be considered, along 
with the outcome of the feasibility studies, and a report will be 
presented to Cabinet in December.  The Cabinet report will 
recommend to Cabinet those schools that should be taken forward to 
the statutory process for permanent expansion.  

 
Secondary School Strategy 
 

Secondary School Projections 
11. The available projections for high schools indicate that there will be a 

small shortfall of Year 7 secondary school places in September 2015.  
The shortfall will increase as the pupil numbers rise and there will be a 
need for approximately 9 additional forms of entry by September 2020.  
Further details of the projections are included in the consultation 
Background Paper 1 (pages 19-21).  However, these are preliminary 
projections and further analysis and development is required.  

 
12. There are a number of associated matters including the number of 

pupils coming into the borough during their secondary education, 
provision for pupils with low levels of English language, the potential 
for schools to expand, pupils with special needs and a potential new 
school. 

 
13. Officers have had initial discussions with the High School 

Headteachers Executive.  It is proposed that options to address the 
pupil growth are developed in partnership with the high schools.   

 
14. There will be a strong interface with this work and the work with the 

High School Headteachers Executive.  This work will commence in 
November and initial outputs will be produced in the Spring. 

 
Academies 
 
15. 7 high schools converted to academy status on 1 August 2011.  The 

council is currently developing its offer of services for purchase by all 
schools.  Some residual local matters from the conversion are being 
resolved.  The government is undertaking a number of consultations 
on school funding which arise from the impact of the academies policy.  
The Schools Forum is considering the impact of these proposals for 
Harrow community schools.  

 
16. At this time the local authority is unaware of any other schools 

investigating formal agreement to convert to academy status. 
12



 
 
Free Schools 
 
17. On Monday 10 October 2011 the Government announced that 79 new 

state funded schools would open from September 2012 onwards.  The 
Department for Education (DfE) will work with the proposers to develop 
their vision into plans to open the schools.  As part of this stage the 
local authority will be consulted on the proposals and site issues will be 
addressed.  

 
18. One of the successful schools is St Chaitanya’s School, proposed by 

the I-Foundation.  The proposal is for an all through school, with 2 
forms of entry in the primary school and 6 forms of entry in the 
secondary school.  The school would be located in Harrow and officers 
are waiting for guidance from the DfE on this process.  Officers have 
an established relationship with the I-Foundation and worked in 
partnership to support the opening of the Krishna-Avanti Primary 
School. 

 
Admissions Policy Up-date 
 

Pupil Numbers in September 2011 
19. There has been a particular pressure for infant school places in the 

south east of the borough.  To address this, an additional class in 
Camrose Primary School has been opened in Year 1.  This is the first 
time that an additional class has been opened in a year group other 
than in Reception.  This indicates the need to ensure a sufficient 
number of permanent expansions to meet demand across the year 
groups. 

 
Outcomes of the allocation of places for Reception class and 11+ 
transfer for the 2011-12 academic year 

20. The outcomes of the allocation of places for community schools into 
Reception classes and Year 7 (11+ transfer) for the 2011-12 academic 
year in accordance with first preferences is presented in the table 
below: 

 
ALLOCATIONS 
 

2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 

Reception 
 

79% 77% 74% 

11+ transfer 
 

81% 87% N/A 
  
21. To meet the demand for reception places, 8 bulge classes were 

opened for September 2011.  All on time Harrow applicants were 
offered a school place to start in September 2011. 

 
22. All Harrow applicants were offered a high school place to start in 

September 2011. 
 
 
 

13



 
Government’s Consultation Code of Practice 

23. The Government undertook a review and consultation on the Schools 
Admissions Code of Practice and School Admissions Appeals Code.  
Some of the key proposals for change were about the exceptions to the 
infant class size regulation (circumstances where an additional teacher 
is not required if there are more than 30 pupils in a class), the abolition 
of the requirement to establish an Admissions Forum and removing the 
requirement for in-year co-ordination.  The new Code is proposed for 
implementation for school admissions in September 2013.  

 
24. The outcome of the consultation is expected to be received early in 

November 2011.  There are implications for the current admissions 
arrangements and the annual consultation that takes place between 
November and January.  

 
Harrow Admissions Arrangements Consultation 

25. As the admissions authority for community schools in Harrow.  The 
annual consultation will commence in November.  Outcomes will be 
reported to Harrow Admissions Forum and then determined by Cabinet 
before 15 April 2012 for implementation in September 2013.  The final 
detail of the consultation will be informed by the new Schools 
Admissions Code of Practice.  

 
Financial Implications 
 

Revenue 
26. Any school expansion programme will inevitably have significant 

financial implications.  School revenue budgets are funded from the 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).  As the Department for Education 
(DfE) allocates DSG based on pupil numbers, any increase in pupil 
numbers results in additional revenue funding for the expanding 
school.  The revenue funding is allocated to schools based on the 
Harrow Schools’ funding formula.  As school budgets are based on 
pupil numbers in the January prior to the start of the financial year, 
there is always a funding lag when schools increase their pupil 
numbers.  To ensure that schools who agree to an expansion are not 
financially penalised the Harrow school funding formula provides 
‘Additional Class Funding’ for the period from September to the end of 
March, following which the mainstream funding formula will take effect.  
This ensures that schools have adequate funding for at least the 
average costs of a teacher. 

 
Capital 

27. During the consultation, there will be work on the school sites to 
assess their needs.  From this work, costings for each school will be 
developed.  The outcome of this work will inform the final proposals for 
permanent expansions. 

 
28. It is expected that the majority of the capital funding will be from the 

government’s Department for Education (DfE).  As part of the 
government’s reduction in public spending, the allocation of funding 
from the DfE is under consideration.  The government has confirmed 
that its priorities are to improve the condition of school buildings and to 

14



 
ensure that there are sufficient school places.  The government will 
confirm its allocation to all local authorities, including Harrow, in 
December for 2012-13.  If funding levels are maintained, it is assumed 
that there will be approximately £7m per year for the next three years.   

 
29. Funding the expansion programme is also being considered as part of 

setting the Council’s 2012/13 to 2016/17 Capital Programme in the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).  In 2011/12 the DfE 
acknowledged the need to provide additional places through the 
allocation of £3.2m of basic need capital grant.  A national review of 
schools’ capital is currently underway and no funding has been 
confirmed for 2012/13 onwards, though for planning purposes it is 
expected to be in line with the 2011/12 allocation.   

 
30. The capital costs of this expansion programme will be phased over 

several years as not all additional accommodation will be required at 
the same time for each school.  As part of the Council’s budget 
process, contingency funding is being proposed in case government 
funding is not sufficient at any point. 

 
31. The Council has a small capital fund available for those schools that 

have a bulge class in September 2012 and which would proceed to a 
permanent expansion.  Schools will be invited to bid for this funding for 
essential works to accommodate bulge classes where this is 
necessary. 

 
32. The Government launched the Priority School Building Programme in 

the summer which aims to rebuild the schools in the poorest condition 
across the country through Private Finance Initiative (PFI).  Although 
there were few details of the programme and many concerns about 
PFI, Harrow has submitted applications for 11 schools.  Where these 
schools are proposed for expansion, the enlarged size has been part 
of the application.  The outcome of the applications will be announced 
by the government in December.  At this stage, the application does 
not constitute formal commitment to enter the programme.  

 
Equalities Implications 
 
33. An Initial Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken on the 

school expansion programme.  The conclusion of this assessment is 
that the implications are positive or neutral in that the school expansion 
programme will ensure sufficient school places for the increasing 
numbers of children in Harrow.  Harrow’s schools are successful and 
inclusive and provide a diversity of provision, and the school expansion 
programme will build on the positives that already exist in Harrow’s 
schools. 

 
34. As proposals for permanent expansion are brought forward, there will 

be Equalities Impact Assessments undertaken on specific proposals.   
 
35. Any future decisions must be taken in accordance with the public 

sector equality duty.  A public authority must, in the exercise of its 
functions, have due regard to the need to: 

15



 
 

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any 
other conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; 

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share 
a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not 
share it; 

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

 
Performance Issues 
 
36. Harrow is a high performing Local Authority and the large majority of 

local services are judged to be good or better by Ofsted.  Schools in 
Harrow perform well in comparison to national and statistically similar 
local authorities.  Most primary schools and all secondary schools are 
judged good or outstanding. 

 
37. The Schools White Paper and Education Bill maintain a focus on 

driving up standards in schools, and place more of the responsibility 
with the schools directly for their improvement.  The role of the Local 
Authority in measuring performance and driving improvement is 
changing significantly and will reduce from its current level.  However, 
the Local Authority will maintain a strategic oversight and enabling role 
in local education, and is likely to retain some role in monitoring 
educational achievement and key measures such as exclusions and 
absence.  The exact nature of the respective roles and responsibilities 
is still emerging and is being discussed with the schools. 

 
38. Although the national indicator set has been abolished by the 

Department for Communities and Local Government, all of the key 
education indicators remain in place and continue to be reported to the 
Department for Education (DfE).  This situation remains under review 
and the DfE is yet to provide clear guidance on if and how educational 
performance will be judged at a borough level. 

 
39. There are implications for the provision of performance and 

management information to other services within Children’s Services 
where schools’ data is not transferred to and held by the Council.  This 
includes data from potential academies and other schools not taking 
up some interdependent SLAs. 

 
Environmental Impact 
 
40. The school expansion programme will have an environmental impact 

that will need to be considered.  Schools account for 50% of the 
council’s total carbon emissions (62% of emissions under the Carbon 
Reduction Commitment scheme – [CRC]) and will need to play a full 
part in reducing these emissions by 4% per annum, as set out in the 
council’s climate change strategy. 

 
41. The government’s position on whether the council or academies are 

responsible for emissions under the CRC is yet to be clarified. 
 

16



 
Risk Management Implications 
 
42. Risk is included on the Corporate and Directorate risk registers. 
 
43. The directorate and corporate risk management implications for the 

council arising from school place planning are included on the 
directorate and corporate risk registers. 

 
Corporate Priorities 
 
44. These considerations will support the Council’s Corporate Priorities for 

2011-2012: 
 

• United and involved communities: A Council that listens and leads. 
• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need. 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:    Emma Stabler X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date:      20 October 2011 

   
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:    Jessica Farmer X  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date:      24 October 2011 

   
 

 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Johanna Morgan, Education Professional Lead, Education 
Strategy and School Organisation, 020 8736 6841. 
 
Background Papers: Cabinet Report 21 July 2011, School Expansion 
Programme 

17



18

This page is intentionally left blank



Primary School Expansion Programme 

Consultation about Proposals for the Permanent 
Expansion of Primary Schools from September 2013 

The consultation runs from 
Monday 10 October to Friday 11 November 2011

Please complete the consultation response form electronically via the 
website: http://harrow-consult.limehouse.co.uk/portal

Alternatively you can send completed response forms to: 
Education Strategy and School Organisation Team, Harrow Council, 
Harrow Teachers' Centre, Tudor Road, Wealdstone HA3 5PQ. 
If you are a parent, you can complete the response form and send it to your 
child’s school. 

Contents
Consultation Paper     pages 2 – 6 
Proposals by Primary Planning Area  pages 7 – 11 
Response Form     pages 13 – 14 

Specific queries or requests for additional information, or for assistance with this consultation, 
can be addressed to: 

  Your child’s school. 
  By phone: 020 8420 9270 
  By email: schoolreorganisation@harrow.gov.uk

The deadline for responses to this consultation is Friday 11 November 2011.

19



2

Consultation paper 

Harrow’s Challenge 
In common with many local authorities, Harrow needs to create more primary school places to 
meet the growing demand for places.  Harrow’s schools are successful and popular with 
parents and pupils.  Our challenge is to find ways to increase the number of places while 
ensuring that educational standards are maintained.  This consultation seeks views on our 
proposals to increase the number of primary school places across the borough. 

Why has this happened? 
Across London the population is growing.  There are many reasons for this increase including 
higher birth rates, migration patterns, housing occupancy and the impact of the economy on 
decisions families make about where they live and about schooling for their children. 

The biggest factor in Harrow is the increase in birth rates.  This has risen consistently since 
2002 and is predicted to continue to rise until 2014.

What are the pupil projections telling us? 
The Greater London Authority (GLA) prepares the pupil projections for Harrow Council.  Many 
London Boroughs use this service.  Pupil projections provide the best estimate of the number of 
pupils that will require a school place in Harrow in the future.  It is not a science and can only be 
a best estimate.  Our school expansion programme aims to increase the number of school 
places in line with the expected pupil numbers.

The GLA use a range of information and data to prepare the projections including the number of 
births, number of pupils in Harrow schools, migration to Harrow, housing development.  Our 
projections are provided at Background Paper 1 – School Roll Projections available on request 
and on the Harrow Council website.
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/49/education-consultations/2450/primary_school_expansion_programme

The demand for Reception class places in Harrow schools is increasing: 
  In January 2006 there were 2,224 Reception aged pupils in Harrow Schools 
  In January 2011, there were 2,637 Reception aged pupils
  In January 2017 it is projected there will be 2,851 Reception aged pupils 

In Harrow’s primary sector schools in September 2011 there were a total of 2,550 permanent 
Reception class places.  With temporary additional places this increased to 2,800.  In order to 
ensure sufficient school places to meet the predicted increased demand on the next few years, 
we need to increase the number of places by at least 330 places. 

Classes in primary schools are usually organised into groups of 30 pupils.  The number of 
school places in each year group is usually a multiple of 30.  For example if there are 3 
Reception classes, then there are 90 places.  When planning places, we assume that each 
class will have 30 places.  Therefore to ensure sufficient places for the number of expected 
pupils, 11 extra Reception classes are required. 

When planning school places it is usual to include some extra places or surplus places.  This 
allows for an element of parental preference and flexibility in the system to manage pupil 
movement in, out and around the borough.  The proposed increase of 330 places does not 
include any surplus places and we would need to make contingency provision for temporary 
additional Reception classes to meet fluctuations in demand. 

20



3

Will this increase in population affect all parts of Harrow? 
For the purposes of school place planning and pupil projections for primary sector schools, 
Harrow is divided into six primary planning areas.  Five planning areas are geographically 
based; central, north east, south east, north west and south west, and one for the voluntary 
aided or faith schools.  The geographical planning areas include a number of community 
schools that attract a significant percentage of their pupils from the Wards in the planning area.
A map of the borough and planning areas is in Background Paper 2. Schools are listed by 
planning area in Background Paper 3. Both are available on the Harrow Website.

The population growth is across the whole of the borough, but it varies between primary 
planning areas.  Schools have been identified in each planning area that it is proposed could be 
increased in size to provide more local school places. 

What action has been taken so far? 
In September 2009, we needed to offer parents more Reception class places than we had 
available in all our schools and we opened additional temporary Reception classes for one year 
only.  Reception classes are for children in the academic year that they reach 5 years of age.
This demand has continued and since then we have been opening temporary additional classes 
to meet the increased demand for Reception class places.  We added five temporary Reception 
classes in September 2009, five temporary Reception classes in September 2010 and eight 
temporary Reception classes in September 2011.  We are now planning to open more 
Reception classes in September 2012 and in subsequent years, including 11 permanent 
expansions of schools.  

In February 2010 Harrow Council agreed its School Place Planning Strategy 2010-13 and in 
July 2011, agreed to implement a school expansion programme.  A key element of the Place 
Planning Strategy is the pupil projections.   

Harrow has been discussing this school expansion programme with schools, including working 
with a representative group of headteachers.  Working in partnership with schools is essential 
because it will be the schools that deliver the solution with support from the council.  It is 
through working with schools that we have been able to increase the number of additional 
temporary Reception class places.

Officers have also made preliminary contact with voluntary aided schools’ boards and 
organisations.

What are the proposals?
Harrow Council proposes to expand 11 schools and to open additional temporary Reception 
classes as required to meet the full extent of the demand and any fluctuations that arise and to 
allow some flexibility and choice in the school system.  The majority of Harrow’s schools will be 
involved in the school expansion programme either through permanent expansion or temporary 
additional Reception classes. 

For each planning area the proposals for increasing school places are outlined providing details 
of the schools and the timescales for expansion.  Details of the projections across the borough 
and by primary planning area are in Background Paper 1.

Within this consultation, the proposals concentrate on community schools in planning areas. 
Any proposals received from voluntary aided schools that contribute to the primary school 
expansion programme would be welcomed. They will be taken into consideration when the 
consultation responses are analysed.

21



4

The table below provides a summary of the proposals.  The proposals by planning area can be 
viewed on pages 7 – 11. 

Proposed Schools for extra permanent places Primary 
Planning

Area

Current
Permanent

Places

Proposed
Permanent

Places
Stanburn First School / Stanburn Junior School 

Aylward Primary School 

North
East

330 360/390

Camrose Primary School 

Kenmore Park schools or Glebe School 

South
East

360 420

Belmont Primary School 

Marlborough Primary School 

420 510

Pinner Park Infant and Nursery School / Pinner Park 
Junior School 

Central

Vaughan Primary School 

Welldon Park Infant School / Welldon Park Junior 
School

South
West

510 570

Cedars Manor Primary School 

Pinner Wood Primary School 

North
West

450 510

How were schools identified? 
There are numerous ways to identify schools for expansion.  All schools were invited to 
consider expansion either as a permanent expansion or to take a bulge class and some schools 
were also approached directly in areas of early pressure.  In addition, working with 
headteachers, a set of guiding principles were developed that could be applied to schools to 
give a ranking of the potential for expansion.  The principles included initial assessments of 
available accommodation, site size, popularity of the school, school standards.  These were 
guiding principles to assist in the consideration of schools.  The consultation responses will also 
inform the final proposals to increase capacity. 

Where separate infant schools were identified for expansion, the separate junior school would 
be increased accordingly. 

What is the difference between temporary additional Reception classes and permanent 
expansion? 
A temporary additional Reception class is an increase in the intake of a school for that year 
only.  The pupils in that class then progress through the school (and on to the junior school of 
separate schools on the same site).  These classes are sometimes referred to as ‘bulge 
classes’, which reflects the effect of the increased numbers of pupils passing through the 
school.

The permanent expansion of a school is when there is an increase in the number of places in 
Reception usually by 30 places.  The increased number of pupils will be admitted year on year.
The effect is to increase the size of a school by 90 pupils in a separate infant school, by 120 in a 
separate junior school, and by 210 in a combined primary school. 

22



5

How will extra pupils be accommodated in schools? 
The council will work with schools on reviewing their accommodation to ensure that there is 
sufficient accommodation for the extra pupils.  There will be close reference to the government’s 
guidance on school accommodation to ensure consistency, but each school will have its own 
accommodation solution reflecting the nature of the school building, its size and type of school 
(i.e. a separate infant or junior school or combined primary school).  As part of Harrow’s school 
reorganisation to change the age of transfer implemented in September 2010, accommodation 
has become available including specialist classrooms and general classrooms.  Wherever 
possible this accommodation will be re-commissioned as teaching classrooms.  In addition, 
where there are schools that have been larger in the past, there is an expectation that 
accommodation will be reinstated for teaching purposes.

What is the cost of the primary school expansion programme and who will fund it? 
During the consultation, there will be work on the school sites to assess their needs.  From this 
work, costings for each school will be developed. The outcome of this work will inform the final 
proposals for permanent expansions. 

It is expected that the majority of the capital funding will be from the government’s Department 
for Education (DfE).  As part of the government’s reduction in public spending, the allocation of 
funding from the DfE is under consideration.  The government has confirmed that its priorities 
are to improve the condition of school buildings and to ensure that there are sufficient school 
places.  The government will confirm its allocation to all local authorities, including Harrow, in 
December for 2012-13.  If funding levels are maintained, it is assumed that there will be 
approximately £7m per year for the next three years.

The capital costs of this expansion programme will be phased over several years as not all 
additional accommodation will be required at the same time for each school.  As part of the 
Council’s budget process, contingency funding is being proposed in case government funding is 
not sufficient at any point. 

The Council has a small capital fund available for those schools that have a bulge class in 
September 2012 and which would proceed to a permanent expansion.  Schools will be invited 
to bid for this funding for essential works to accommodate bulge classes where this is 
necessary.

The revenue funding for schools is provided through the Harrow Schools’ funding formula.  The 
Schools’ Forum, a representative group of headteachers and governors, makes decisions about 
the formula and how funding is allocated to schools.  To assist schools that have temporary 
additional Reception classes, there is an ‘Additional Class Funding Formula’ that provides 
schools with revenue funding based on the average costs of a teacher.  The Government are in 
the process of consulting on a National Funding Formula for all schools.  The focus on the 
formula is on pupil numbers, and how much flexibility there will be in future for an additional 
class funding formula is unknown. 

What happens if these proposals do not produce enough places? 
It is believed that the proposed primary school expansion programme will provide sufficient 
places and that these places will remain filled for as far as can be predicted.  Schools that could 
provide temporary Reception class places additional to the permanent places will be identified 
to meet any increases in demand.  Harrow Council has a legal duty to ensure sufficient school 

23



6

places for the children in its area, and if necessary further proposals for school expansions to 
provide more places could be brought forward in consultation with the schools. 

When will we know the outcome of the consultation? 
The consultation runs from Monday 10 October to Friday 11 November 2011.  A report will be 
presented to Harrow Cabinet, the decision making body of local elected councillors, on 15 
December 2011.  This report will present the councillors with the outcome of the consultation 
and make proposals about those schools for permanent expansion.  Harrow Cabinet will decide 
which schools will be subject to the statutory processes to increase the size of the schools. 

What are the next steps after Cabinet? 
The statutory processes to expand schools involve several formal stages (indicative timescales 
are included): 

  statutory consultation – for 4 weeks during February/March 2012;
  consideration of the outcome of the consultation and decision whether to publish 

statutory proposals – March 2012; 
  publication of statutory notices / proposals – for 4 weeks during April 2012; 
  decision whether to approve the proposals for implementation – June 2012. 

When the statutory processes are completed, implementation planning will be progressed by 
the council and the schools.  This will include building works to the schools’ accommodation.  
The additional places will be offered at the schools within the timescales for their additional 
temporary Reception classes and permanent expansions. 

How do I respond to this consultation? 
Please respond to this consultation via the website: http://harrow-consult.limehouse.co.uk/portal
Alternatively you can complete the response form and send it to your child’s school or to the 
Education Strategy and School Organisation Team, Harrow Council, Harrow Teachers' Centre, 
Tudor Road, Wealdstone HA3 5PQ. 

The deadline for responses to this consultation is Friday 11 November 2011. 

24



7

Proposals by Primary Planning Area 

North East Primary Planning Area 
There are currently 330 permanent Reception class places in the North East Primary Planning 
Area.

Schools Reception Places
Aylward 60
Stanburn 90
Weald 90
Whitchurch 90
Total 330

Temporary additional reception places have been opened in the North East planning area as 
follows:

Year School Additional Reception Places 
2010 Weald Infant and Nursery School. 30
2011 Weald Infant and Nursery School. 

Stanburn First School. 
30
30

The projections indicate that by September 2017 there will be 365 pupils. The proposal for this 
planning area is to increase the permanent provision by at least 30 places, supplemented by 
temporary additional reception classes.

The Stanburn schools are proposed for expansion in this primary planning area.  However, 
views are being sought in this consultation about expanding Aylward Primary School also.  This 
is because with only four community school sites in the North East planning area it would be 
difficult for the schools to meet demand, if it is sustained at the predicted high level, through 
temporary additional reception classes.  Also, demand for school places in the North East 
Primary Planning Area is already filling available places and there is significant new housing 
development in this planning area at the site of the former government offices off Honeypot 
Lane.

The proposals are: 

Year Temporary Reception Classes Permanent Expansion 
September 2012 Aylward School. 

One class in another school. 
September 2013 One class if required. Stanburn First School and 

Stanburn Junior School.* 
Aylward School. 

* Note as these are separate schools, Stanburn Junior School would be expanded from 
September 2014 when the pupils from the 2011 additional reception intake progress on to the 
junior school. 

25



8

South East Primary Planning Area 
There are currently 360 reception places in the South East Primary Planning Area. 

Schools Reception Places
Camrose 30
Glebe 60
Kenmore Park 90
Priestmead 90
Stag Lane 90
Total 360

Temporary additional reception places have been opened in the South East planning area as 
follows:

Year School Additional Reception Places 
2009 Glebe Primary School Increased permanent places 

by 8 from 52 to 60 
2010 Kenmore Park Infant and Nursery 

School
30

2011 Kenmore Park Infant and Nursery 
School
Glebe Primary School 

30

30

The projections indicate that by September 2017 there will be 397 pupils. The proposal for this 
planning area is to increase the permanent provision by 60 places, supplemented by bulge 
classes.

Two temporary additional reception classes have been opened in this primary planning area in 
September 2011, which are filling with pupils.  If this increased demand is sustained there may 
need to be further consideration of permanently increasing an additional school to meet the 
increased demand that is predicted, though this is not proposed within this consultation.   

The Krishna-Avanti Primary School Admissions Policy states the school has applied for planning 
permission and, subject to obtaining this permission and capital funding, intends to incrementally 
expand into a two form of entry school.  This proposed expansion is separate from this 
consultation.  If this expansion occurs, the impact on meeting demand from this area would need 
to be monitored. 

The proposals are: 

Year Temporary Reception Classes Permanent Expansion 
September 2012 Camrose Primary School. 

Glebe Primary School. 
September 2013 Camrose Primary School. 

Glebe School or Kenmore Park 
Infant and Nursery School and 
Kenmore Park Junior School*

* Note as these are separate schools, Kenmore Park Junior School would be expanded from 
September 2013 when the pupils from the 2010 additional reception intake progress on to the 
junior school. 

Glebe Primary School and the Kenmore Park schools are located comparatively close to each 
other for meeting the need from Harrow residents, and close to St Bernadette’s Catholic 
Primary School and the borough boundary.  Views are being sought in this consultation about 
expanding either or both of these schools. 

26



9

Central Primary Planning Area 
There are currently 420 reception places in the Central Primary Planning Area.

Schools Reception Places
Belmont 60
Elmgrove 90
Marlborough 60
Norbury 60
Pinner Park 90
Whitefriars 60
Total 420

Temporary additional reception places have been opened in the Central planning area as 
follows:

Year School Additional Reception Places 
2009 Belmont School. 

Elmgrove Infant School. 
30
Increased permanent places 
by 8 from 82 to 90 

2010 Norbury School. 30
2011 Norbury School. 

Pinner Park Infant and Nursery 
School.

30
30

The projections indicate that by September 2016 there will be 481 pupils. The proposal for this 
planning area is to increase the permanent provision by 90 places. 

The proposals are: 

Year Temporary Reception Classes Permanent Expansion 
September 2012 Belmont School. 

Marlborough Primary School. 
Pinner Park Infant and Nursery 
School.

September 2013 Belmont Primary School. 
Marlborough Primary School 
(see note). 
Pinner Park Infant and Nursery 
School and Pinner Park Junior 
School*

* Note as these are separate schools, Pinner Park Junior School would be expanded from 
September 2014 when the pupils from the 2011 additional reception intake progress on to the 
junior school. 
Note: There are planned capital building works at Marlborough Primary School and permanent 
expansion would be phased from a date to be identified to fit with the building works. 

27



10

South West Primary Planning Area 
There are currently 510 reception places in the South West Primary Planning Area.

Schools Reception Places 
Earlsmead 60
Grange 60
Heathland 90
Newton Farm 30
Roxbourne 90
Roxeth 60
Vaughan 60
Welldon Park 60
Total 510

Temporary additional reception places have been opened in the South West planning area as 
follows:

Year School Additional Reception Places 
2009 Grange First School. 

Welldon Park Infant and Nursery 
School.

30
30

2010 Roxeth Primary School. Increased places by 4 from 56 
to 60 

2011 Grange Primary School. 30

The projections indicate that by September 2016 there will be 575 pupils. The proposal for this 
planning area is to increase the permanent provision by 60 places.   

The proposals are: 

Year Temporary Reception Classes Permanent Expansion 
September 2012 Vaughan Primary School. 

Welldon Park Infant and Nursery 
School.

September 2013 Vaughan Primary School. 
Welldon Park Infant and Nursery 
School and Welldon Park Junior 
School*.

* Note as these are separate schools, Welldon Park Junior School would be expanded from 
September 2015 when the pupils from the 2012 additional reception intake progress on to the 
junior school. 

28



11

North West Primary Planning Area 
There are currently 450 reception places in the North West Primary Planning Area.

Schools Reception Places 
Cannon Lane 90
Cedars Manor 60
Grimsdyke 60
Longfield 90
Pinner Wood 60
West Lodge 90
Total 450

Temporary additional reception places have been opened in the North West planning area as 
follows:

Year School Additional Reception Places 
2009 Cedars Manor School. 30
2010 Longfield Infant School. 

Pinner Wood School. 
30
30

2011 Cedars Manor School. 30

The projections indicate that by September 2013 there will be 499 pupils. The proposal for this 
planning area is to increase the permanent provision by 60 places. 

The proposals are: 

Year Temporary Reception Classes Permanent Expansion 
September 2012 Cedars Manor School. 

Pinner Wood School. 
September 2013 Cedars Manor School. 

Pinner Wood School. 

29



12
30



13

Primary School Expansion Programme – Response Form 
The consultation runs from Monday 10 October 2011 to Friday 11 November 2011 

Tick the relevant boxes to show your views. Please return only one form.

For the purposes of school place planning Harrow is divided into five geographic Primary 
Planning Areas: Central, North East, South East, North West, and South West.
Schools are proposed for expansion in each of these Primary Planning Areas.  For a list of 
schools in each Primary Planning Area please refer to Background Paper 3 in the consultation 
papers by following this link http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/49/education-
consultations/2450/primary_school_expansion_programme

Do you agree with the proposals for an individual Primary Planning Area? 

Yes   No   Not sure 

Please state which Primary Planning Area: …..………………………………………………………

Do you have any comments about the proposals? - Please outline them below
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………

Do you agree with the proposals for the permanent expansion of an individual school? 

Yes   No   Not sure 

Please state which school: …..…………………………………………………….

Do you have any comments about the proposals for this school? - Please outline them below 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………
Your responses to these questions will be collated with all the other responses and reported to 
Harrow Cabinet. 

We would like to know about you - Which category describes you best? 
a) Individual respondent 

 Parent/carer    School Staff   School Governor   
 Pupil    Harrow Resident   Other – Please tell us………….. 

Please give your post code ………………………………………………………… 

Are you registered disabled? 
Yes   No 

To which one of these groups do you consider you belong?
These ethnic groups are based on the 2011 Census categories but include categories to reflect 
the communities in Harrow and are listed alphabetically below.  Please choose ONE section 
from A to E and then tick or write in the appropriate box to indicate your ethnic background. 

A. Asian or Asian British  
Afghan  Bangladeshi   Indian   
Pakistani           Sinhalese   Sri Lankan Tamil 
Any other Asian background, please write in 

31



14

B. Black or Black British 
African  Caribbean   Ghanaian  
Nigerian  Somali  
Any other Black background, please write in 

C. Other Ethnic Group 
Arab  Chinese  
Iranian  Iraqi   
Kurdish  Lebanese  
Any other ethnic group, please write in 

D. Mixed 
White and African  White and Caribbean 
White and Asian 
Any other Mixed background, please write in 

E. White   
Albanian  British   
Gypsy/Roma Traveller  Irish   
Irish Traveller  Polish   
Romanian  Serbian  
Any other White background, please write in 

Religion
 No religion     Agnostic Baha’l Buddhism Christianity Hinduism 
 Humanist Islam Jainism Judaism        Rastafarian Sikhism
Zoroastrian Prefer not to say other (please specify)

Prefer not to say 

b) Are you representing an organisation or governing body? 
Yes   No 

If yes, what type of organisation? 
School governing body   Representative organisation 
Voluntary or community group  Local authority   
Health agency    Other     

What is the name of your organisation? …………………………………………………

The information you provide in your response will be subject to the Freedom of Information Act 
2000, which allows public access to information held by the Council. This does not necessarily 
mean that your response can be made available to the public as there are exemptions relating 
to information provided in confidence and information to which the Data Protection Act 1998 
applies. You may request confidentiality by ticking the box provided, but you should note that 
neither this, nor an automatically-generated email confidentiality statement, will necessarily 
exclude the public right of access    

32



 1

DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION       Background Paper 1 
SCHOOL ROLL PROJECTIONS 2012 – 2021 REPORT 

Introduction
The School Roll Projections 2012 – 2021 Report is prepared by the Education Performance 
Team to support the school place planning process in Harrow. It brings together information on 
population projections, pupil roll numbers and housing developments in Harrow. This report 
provides information on birth rates, primary school projections, including reception places only 
and secondary school projections. The data is analysed to indicate the number of school places 
required. This data is considered by the Pupil Place Planning Group along with other 
information to develop options to manage the supply of school places. This data report is up-
dated annually. The report has 3 Sections: 

Section 1: Methodology and Projections 
Section 2: School Roll Projections 
Section 3: Accuracy and Methodology 

Section 1: Methodology and Projections 
This section outlines the projection methodology and their accuracy, and presents the birth 
rates and population projections.

Projection Methodology and Accuracy
The projections are prepared for Harrow by the Greater London Authority’s (GLA) School Roll 
Projection Service (SRP) and are based upon the latest 2010 round of population projections 
released by the GLA and school roll data collected in the January 2011 School Census and 
previous School Censuses. The method used by the GLA combines a ‘catchment’ method, 
which is based on population projections, and a ‘replacement’ method, which is based on 
school rolls. The combined projections are weighted towards the replacement method in the 
short term and the catchment method in the longer term.  A more detailed explanation of the 
two methods is given in Section 3. 

The GLA projections for primary schools are presented on an area basis using the Planning 
Areas created by Harrow Council for school place planning in 2004 when they were recast to 
reflect boundary changes. The projections for each Planning Area are based on a combination 
of ward-level child population projections and the historic pattern of subscription to schools. An 
analysis of where pupils went to school in 2004, based on pupils’ postcodes, was used to define 
the Planning Areas. Where over 40% of pupils in a ward went to schools in the Planning Area, 
these are described as “main” wards. Where between 10% and 40% of pupils in a ward went to 
schools in the Planning Area these are described as “other” wards. Thus it is possible to see 
that for Planning Area 1, the North East, most pupils attending Aylward, Stanburn, Whitchurch 
and Weald schools lived in Belmont, Stanmore Park and Canons wards. Smaller numbers of 
pupils lived in Harrow Weald, Edgware, Queensbury, Wealdstone, Kenton East and Kenton 
West.

The report also addresses the accuracy of the school roll projections that are supplied by the 
GLA. The 2007 to 2010 GLA projections are analysed to see how well they have predicted the 
2011 school roll.

33



Birth Rates
There has been an increase in live births from 2,581 in 2001 to 3,265 in 2009 and this is 
projected to rise to 3,314 by 20141.  Harrow retains approximately 85% of live births into its 
reception classes, so that reception numbers increase in line with the birth rate.  This means 
that reception numbers will continue to rise until at least 2017.  These figures are demonstrated 
in the following graph. 

Harrow's Actual & Projected Births compared to Actual Rolls & Projected Rolls 

3,265
3,193

2,9662,921
2,876

2,814
2,714

2,5992,581

3,080

3,103

3,137

3,181

3,226

3,260

3,277

3,314

3,308

3,303

3,294

3,291

2,637

2,571
2,419

2,435
2,310

2,224

2,242

2,261

2,287

2,337

2,356

2,729
2,771

2,8222,8462,8512,8432,8382,8302,800

2,659

2,000

2,200

2,400

2,600

2,800

3,000

3,200

3,400

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

Years

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
ch

il
d

re
n

/p
u

p
il

s

Actual births Projected births Actual rolls Projected rolls Jan 2011

Actual & Projected Births source: Harrow Borough Preference - 2010 Round Ward.xls  
Actual & Projected Rolls source: Send Harrow - January 2011 - CR - 4P - 2010 Round - 24-5-2011 1554.xls 

Population Projections
The 2010 round population projections2 are represented in the following two graphs.  These 
projections show an increase in 4-10 year olds in the population over the next few years and 
suggest that the population will rise by some 13% to a peak around 2019 with a subsequent 
slight decline.

The number of 11-15 year olds in the population has fallen from 2010 to 2011 and will continue 
to gently fall up until 2015 and then will continue to rise steadily to a peak in 2024 before 
starting to decline slowly again.   

Factors that are reflected in the GLA’s population projections include national and London 
population trends, births, fertility rates and migration rates. These population projections do take 
account of the proposed number of new housing units but not the type of housing (whether 
social or private, flats or houses, and the number of bedrooms). 

                                           
1 GLA’s Harrow Borough Preference - 2010 Round Ward.xls 

 2

2 Source: GLA  File: Send Harrow - January 2011 - CR - 4P - 2010 Round - 24-5-2011 1554.xls 

34



Total number of 4-10 year olds in Harrow's population

16000

17000

18000

19000

20000

21000

22000

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

2029

2030

2031

2010 Round of Population Projections

Send Harrow - January 2011 - CR - 4P - 2010 Round - 24-5-2011 1554.xls 

Total number of 11-15 year olds in Harrow's population

11500

12000

12500

13000

13500

14000

14500

15000

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

20
14

20
15

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

2029

20
30

20
31

2010 Round of Population Projections

Send Harrow - January 2011 - CR - 4P - 2010 Round - 24-5-2011 1554.xls 

 3
35



 4

Section 2: School Roll Projections

Primary Schools 
Information on primary school roll projections is divided into three parts: 

i) The general picture for all Primary School aged pupils Reception to Year 6 and is 
based on the most recent GLA projections. 

ii) The second section concentrates on projections for reception pupils only. This is 
provided in the context of the unpredicted increase in demand for reception places 
this year (with rises projected to continue until 2017), and also factors in a 5% surplus 
as recommended by DfE. 

iii) Projections for primary schools by Planning Areas. 

i) Projections for Reception to Year 6 Pupils

According to the 2011 round of GLA school roll projections, the information in Table 1 and Chart 
1 shows that the number of pupils in Reception to Year 6 is likely to increase steadily beyond 
the 2016/17 academic year. 

The number of available places has been increased in accordance to the rise in school roll 
projections, with 5 ‘bulge’ classes in some schools in September 2009, 5 ‘bulge’ classes in 
some schools in September 2010 and another 8 ‘bulge’ classes in September 2011.  We are 
now planning to open more reception classes in September 2012 and for the foreseeable future.
The current 18,157 places increases to 18,400 in 2016/17, partly accounted for by the new 
Hindu school, which becomes fully occupied in September 2015. 

Together the data indicates that we will move from a current small surplus of places to a deficit 
in the 2013/14 academic year. The surplus place % is calculated from the projected pupil 
number and the places available. A surplus of 5% is required to enable the local authority to 
manage fluctuations in demand and offer some parental preference. 

36



Table 1: School roll projections for Reception – Year 6 in all schools in Harrow
Primary projection area: All Schools (Includes VA) 
Years R to 6 only 

Year January actual 
number on roll 

Projected demand 
(GLA) Places available* Surplus places GLA 

(%) 

05/06 16,633 18,489 10.04% 
06/07 16,654 18,391 9.59% 
07/08 16,686 18,259 6.92% 
08/09 16,637 18,109 6.74% 
09/10 16,920 18,125 5.96% 
10/11 17,326 18,157 4.93% 
11/12 17,694 18,349 3.57% 
12/13 18,279 18,471 1.04% 
13/14 18,779 18,476 -1.64% 
14/15 19,154 18,526 -3.39% 
15/16 19,485 18,546 -5.06% 
16/17 19,748 18,400 -7.33% 
17/18 19,927 18,330 -8.71% 
18/19 19,957 18,330 -8.88% 
19/20 19,796 18,330 -8.00% 
20/21 19,584 18,330 -6.84% 

Note: The shaded areas represent actual figures recorded and unshaded are projections. 
The ‘Places available’ figure for 2009/10, 2010/11 and 2011/12 include actual increased PANs 
and bulge classes; and for 2012/13 planned increases to PANs. 

Chart 1: Current number on roll compared to roll projections* and places available for Year R – 
6 in all schools in Harrow 

Roll Projections - R to Yr 6 - All Schools

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Places Roll GLA Projections

* Send Harrow - January 2011 - CR - 4P - 2010 Round - 24-5-2011 1554.xls 

ii) Projections for Reception Pupils Only

Reception numbers have risen from 2,224 in January 2006 to 2,637 in January 2011.  GLA 
projections are indicating that this increase will continue from 2,659 in January 2012 to 2,851 in 
January 2017. 

Harrow aims to maintain a minimum 5% surplus across the borough in both the primary and 
secondary sectors and the following table and graph summarise the number of reception places 
required to achieve this aim.
 5

37



Table 2: School roll projections for Year Reception in all schools in Harrow
Primary projection area: All Schools (Includes VA) 
Year Reception 

School
Year

January 
actual 

number
on roll 

Projected 
demand
(GLA) 

Places needed 
to maintain 

surplus
(GLA + 5%) 

Reception 
Places

available **

Proposed
Additional 

FE required*

Total Reception 
Places Proposed

05/06 2,224 2,605
06/07 2,310 2,575
07/08 2,435 2,530
08/09 2,419 2,530
09/10 2,571 2,696
10/11 2,637 2,700
11/12 2,659 2,792 2,800 0 2,800
12/13 2,800 2,940 2,700 8* 2,940
13/14 2,830 2,972 2,550 14 2,970 
14/15 2,838 2,980 2,550 14 2,970 
15/16 2,843 2,985 2,550 15 3,000 
16/17 2,851 2,994 2,550 15 3,000 
17/18 2,846 2,988 2,550 15 3,000 
18/19 2,822 2,963 2,550 14 2,970 
19/20 2,771 2,910 2,550 12 2,910 
20/21 2,729 2,865 2,550 10 2,850 
  * Proposed Additional FE calculates additional places needed to maintain 5% surplus which is approx 4 

extra classes. 2012/13 proposed total additional FE is 13. 
  ** Places available 2009/10, 2010/11 and 2011/12 include actual increased PANs and bulge classes 
Notes: The ‘Reception Places available’ column includes: 

  In 2011/12 the temporary additional Reception places opened in September 2011. 
  In 2012/13 the additional temporary Reception places published in the Guide to Primary Schools 

2012-2013 (4 classes to be opened if required and 1 subject to planning and capital)  

Chart 2: Current numbers on roll compared to roll projections and places available for Year 
Reception in all schools in Harrow

Reception Roll Projections

2,000

2,200

2,400

2,600

2,800

3,000

3,200

05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Roll GLA Projections Places Projected places  required

The number of permanent reception places consolidated in September 2011 to 2,550.  This 
excludes any temporary bulge classes and includes permanent increases in planned admission 
numbers in three schools to multiples of 30.

 6
38



 7

iii) Primary Schools Projections by Planning Area

North East Planning Area (GLA Planning Area 1): 

Projections for the North East Planning Area are based on data from the following schools and 
population data for part or all of these wards: 

Schools: Main Wards: 
Aylward Belmont
Stanburn Stanmore Park 
Weald Canons
Whitchurch Other Wards:

Harrow Weald 
Edgware
Queensbury 
Wealdstone
Kenton East 
Kenton West 

Table 3: Reception projections for the North East Planning Area 
Primary projection area: North East (Community Schools only) 
Year Reception 

School
Year

January 
actual 

number
on roll 

Projected 
demand
(GLA) 

Places needed 
to maintain 

surplus
(GLA + 5%) 

Reception 
Places

available 

Proposed
Additional 

FE required*

Total Reception 
Places Proposed

05/06 285 330
06/07 305 330
07/08 323 330
08/09 316 330
09/10 325 330
10/11 346 360
11/12 348 365 390 -1 360
12/13 372 391 330 2 390
13/14 361 379 330 2 390
14/15 362 380 330 2 390 
15/16 363 381 330 2 390 
16/17 364 382 330 2 390 
17/18 365 383 330 2 390 
18/19 361 379 330 2 390 
19/20 356 374 330 2 390 
20/21 350 368 330 1 360 

Table 3 shows GLA roll projections for the Reception year group for the North East Planning 
Area. The projections show a slight increase in pupil numbers between now and September 
2012, followed by a small drop, at which point the numbers stabilise for the next few years.  The 
current small surplus of places will become a small deficit in 2012/13, which looks to continue 
up until at least 2019/20. 

39



Table 4: Primary projections for the North East Planning Area 
Primary projection area: North East (Community Schools only) 
Years R to 6 only 

Year January actual 
number on roll 

Projected demand 
(GLA) Places available Surplus places GLA 

(%) 

05/06 2,206 2,460 10.33% 
06/07 2,193 2,430 9.75% 
07/08 2,203 2,400 8.21% 
08/09 2,210 2,370 6.75% 
09/10 2,207 2,340 5.68% 
10/11 2,254 2,340 3.68% 
11/12 2,312 2,400 3.67% 
12/13 2,395 2,400 0.21% 
13/14 2,460 2,400 -2.50% 
14/15 2,514 2,400 -4.75% 
15/16 2,560 2,400 -6.67% 
16/17 2,602 2,400 -8.42% 
17/18 2,623 2,400 -9.29% 
18/19 2,626 2,400 -9.42% 
19/20 2,602 2,400 -8.42% 
20/21 2,578 2,400 -7.42% 

Table 4 and Chart 3 show GLA roll projections for the North East Planning Area. The 
projections show an increase in pupil numbers between now and 2018 and suggest that the 
current small surplus of places will become a deficit in 2013/14, this expected deficit will 
continue to increase up until 2020/21. 

Chart 3: Current number on roll compared to roll projections* and places available for the North 
East Planning Area 

Roll Projections - R to Yr 6 - North East Planning area

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Places Roll GLA Projections

* Send Harrow - January 2011 - CR - 4P - 2010 Round - 24-5-2011 1554.xls 

 8
40



 9

North West Planning Area (GLA Planning Area 2):

Projections for the North West Planning Area are based on data from the following schools and 
population data for part or all of these wards: 

Schools: Main Wards: 
Cannon Lane Pinner
Cedars Manor Pinner South 
Grimsdyke Hatch End 
Longfield Headstone North 
Pinner Wood Harrow Weald 
West Lodge Other Wards:

Headstone South 
Rayners Lane 
Roxbourne
Harrow on the Hill 
West Harrow 

Table 5: Reception projections for the North West Planning Area 
Primary projection area: North West (Community Schools only) 
Year Reception 

School
Year

January 
actual 

number
on roll 

Projected 
demand
(GLA) 

Places needed 
to maintain 

surplus
(GLA + 5%) 

Reception 
Places

available 

Proposed
Additional 

FE required*

Total Reception 
Places Proposed

05/06 402 510
06/07 435 480
07/08 432 450
08/09 430 450
09/10 451 480
10/11 498 510
11/12 471 495 480 1 510
12/13 494 519 450 2 510
13/14 499 524 450 3 540
14/15 499 524 450 3 540
15/16 499 524 450 3 540
16/17 499 524 450 3 540
17/18 497 522 450 3 540
18/19 491 516 450 2 510
19/20 481 505 450 2 510
20/21 473 497 450 2 510 

Table 5 shows GLA roll projections for the Reception year group for the North West Planning 
Area. The projections generally remain in-line with the 2010/11 actual roll of 498.

41



Table 6: Primary projections for the North West Planning Area 
Primary projection area: North West (Community Schools only) 
Years R to 6 only 

Year January actual 
number on roll 

Projected demand 
(GLA) Places available Surplus places GLA (%) 

05/06 3,181 3,570 10.90% 
06/07 3,109 3,540 12.18% 
07/08 3,098 3,480 10.98% 
08/09 3,064 3,420 10.41% 
09/10 3,084 3,390 9.03% 
10/11 3,162 3,390 6.73% 
11/12   3,195 3,360 4.91% 
12/13 3,286 3,300 0.42% 
13/14 3,353 3,270 -2.54% 
14/15 3,413 3,270 -4.37% 
15/16 3,463 3,270 -5.90% 
16/17 3,497 3,240 -7.93% 
17/18 3,514 3,240 -8.46% 
18/19 3,513 3,240 -8.43% 
19/20 3,478 3,240 -7.35% 
20/21 3,435 3,240 -6.02% 

The GLA roll projections in Table 6 and Chart 4 anticipate a significant increase in pupil 
numbers in the North West Planning Area with a projected deficit of –8.55% by 2017/18. 

Chart 4: Current number on roll compared to roll projections* and places available for the North 
West Planning Area 

Roll Projections - R to Yr 6 - North West Planning area

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Places Roll GLA Projections

* Send Harrow - January 2011 - CR - 4P - 2010 Round - 24-5-2011 1554.xls 

 10
42



 11

South East Planning Area (GLA Planning Area 3):

Projections for the South East Planning Area are based on data from the following schools and 
population data for part or all of these wards: 

Schools: Main Wards: Other Wards:
Camrose Edgware Belmont
Glebe Queensbury Canons
Kenmore Park Kenton East 
Priestmead Kenton West 
Stag Lane 

Table 7: Reception projections for the South East Planning Area 
Primary projection area: South East (Community Schools only) 
Year Reception 

School
Year

January 
actual 

number
on roll 

Projected 
demand
(GLA) 

Places needed 
to maintain 

surplus
(GLA + 5%) 

Reception 
Places

available 

Proposed
Additional 

FE required*

Total Reception 
Places Proposed

05/06 293 367
06/07 296 367
07/08 334 352
08/09 332 352
09/10 348 360
10/11 380 390
11/12 380 399 420 -1 390
12/13 399 419 390 1 420
13/14 393 413 360 2 420
14/15 395 415 360 2 420
15/16 395 415 360 2 420
16/17 397 417 360 2 420
17/18 395 415 360 2 420
18/19 392 412 360 2 420
19/20 386 405 360 2 420
20/21 381 400 360 2 420

43



Table 8: Primary projections for the South East Planning Area 
Primary projection area: South East (Community Schools only) 
Years R to 6 only 

Year January actual 
number on roll 

Projected demand 
(GLA) Places available Surplus places GLA (%) 

05/06 2,229 2,646 15.76% 
06/07 2,268 2,623 13.53% 
07/08 2,295 2,593 11.49% 
08/09 2,307 2,563 9.99% 
09/10 2,371 2,541 6.69% 
10/11 2,480 2,561 3.16% 
11/12 2,575 2,611 1.38% 
12/13 2,676 2,631 -1.71% 
13/14 2,759 2,624 -5.14% 
14/15 2,795 2,632 -6.19% 
15/16 2,821 2,640 -6.86% 
16/17 2,846 2,640 -7.80% 
17/18 2,855 2,640 -8.14% 
18/19 2,844 2,640 -7.73% 
19/20 2,807 2,640 -6.33% 
20/21 2,772 2,640 -5.00% 

Table 8 and Chart 5 show the roll projection figures for the South East Planning Area. They 
indicate a steady increase in pupil numbers and suggest that the current small surplus of places 
will become a significant deficit in 2013/14, this will continue to rise and is indicated to peak in 
2017/18 at –8.26%.

Chart 5: Current number on roll compared to roll projections* and places available for the South 
East Planning Area  

Roll Projections - R to Yr 6 - South East Planning area

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Places Roll GLA Projections

* Send Harrow - January 2011 - CR - 4P - 2010 Round - 24-5-2011 1554.xls 

 12
44



 13

South West Planning Area (GLA Planning Area 4):

Projections for the South West Planning Area are based on data from the following schools and 
population data for part or all of these wards: 

Schools: Main Wards: 
Earlsmead Rayners Lane 
Grange Roxbourne
Heathland Roxeth 
Newton Farm West Harrow 
Roxbourne Harrow on the Hill 
Roxeth Other Wards:
Vaughan Headstone South 
Welldon Park Greenhill

Table 9: Reception projections for the South West Planning Area 
Primary projection area: South West (Community Schools only) 
Year Reception 

School
Year

January 
actual 

number
on roll 

Projected 
demand
(GLA) 

Places needed 
to maintain 

surplus
(GLA + 5%) 

Reception 
Places

available 

Proposed
Additional 

FE required*

Total Reception 
Places Proposed

05/06 437 536
06/07 446 536
07/08 490 536
08/09 469 506
09/10 505 566
10/11 496 510
11/12 515 541 540 0 540
12/13 539 566 540 1 570
13/14 566 594 510 3 600
14/15 571 600 510 3 600 
15/16 573 602 510 3 600 
16/17 575 604 510 3 600 
17/18 574 603 510 3 600 
18/19 569 597 510 3 600 
19/20 557 585 510 3 600
20/21 548 575 510 2 570

45



Table 10: Primary projections for the South West Planning Area 
Primary projection area: South West (Community Schools only) 
Years R to 6 only 

Year January actual 
number on roll 

Projected demand 
(GLA) Places available Surplus places GLA (%) 

05/06 3,313 3,752 11.70% 
06/07 3,325 3,752 11.38% 
07/08 3,274 3,752 12.74% 
08/09 3,219 3,692 12.81% 
09/10 3,302 3,692 12.27% 
10/11 3,342 3,636 9.74% 
11/12 3,387 3,640 6.95% 
12/13 3,503 3,674 4.65% 
13/14 3,620 3,678 1.58% 
14/15 3,707 3,682 -0.68% 
15/16 3,802 3,686 -3.15% 
16/17 3,869 3,630 -6.58% 
17/18 3,927 3,630 -8.18% 
18/19 3,950 3,630 -8.82% 
19/20 3,935 3,630 -8.40% 
20/21 3,896 3,630 -7.33% 

Roll projections in Table 10 and Chart 6 show a steady rise in pupil numbers over the next few 
years, but indicate that places will continue to meet demand, although with a steadily 
diminishing surplus (3 pupils per year group by 2015/16). 

Chart 6:  Current number on roll compared to roll projections* and places available for the South 
West Planning Area 

Roll Projections - R to Yr 6 - South West Planning area

1

501

1,001

1,501

2,001

2,501

3,001

3,501

4,001

4,501

05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Places Roll GLA Projections

* Send Harrow - January 2011 - CR - 4P - 2010 Round - 24-5-2011 1554.xls 

 14
46



 15

Central Planning Area (GLA Planning Area 5):
Projections for the Central Planning Area are based on data from the following schools and 
population data for part or all of these wards: 

Schools: Main Wards: 
Belmont Wealdstone
Elmgrove Marlborough
Marlborough Headstone South 
Norbury Greenhill
Pinner Park Headstone North 
Whitefriars Other Wards:

Harrow Weald 
Hatch End 
Belmont
Kenton West 
West Harrow 

Table 11: Reception projections for the Central Planning Area 
Primary projection area: Central (Community Schools only) 
Year Reception 

School
Year

January 
actual 

number
on roll 

Projected 
demand
(GLA) 

Places needed 
to maintain 

surplus
(GLA + 5%) 

Reception 
Places

available 

Proposed
Additional 

FE required*

Total Reception 
Places Proposed

05/06 374 412
06/07 388 412
07/08 407 412
08/09 403 412
09/10 436 450
10/11 440 450
11/12 444 466 480 0 480
12/13 466 489 480 0 480
13/14 479 503 420 3 510
14/15 477 501 420 3 510
15/16 479 503 420 3 510
16/17 481 505 420 3 510
17/18 481 505 420 3 510
18/19 479 503 420 3 510
19/20 471 495 420 3 510
20/21 464 487 420 2 480

47



Table 12: Primary projections for the Central Planning Area 
Primary projection area: Central (Community Schools) 
Years R to 6 only 

Year
January 

actual number 
on roll 

Projected demand 
(GLA) Places available * Surplus places GLA 

(%) 

05/06 2,660 2,914 8.72% 
06/07 2,685 2,884 6.90% 
07/08 2,702 2,884 6.31% 
08/09 2,693 2,884 6.62% 
09/10 2,750 2,922 5.27% 
10/11 2,833 2,960 2.80% 
11/12 2,904 3,028 4.10% 
12/13 3,000 3,066 2.15% 
13/14 3,081 3,074 -0.23% 
14/15 3,140 3,082 -1.91% 
15/16 3,196 3,090 -3.46% 
16/17 3,239 3,060 -5.95% 
17/18 3,275 3,060 -7.12% 
18/19 3,285 3,060 -7.39% 
19/20 3,266 3,060 -6.67% 
20/21 3,234 3,060 -5.56% 

Table 12 and Chart 7 show the projected pupil numbers in this Planning Area over the next few 
years. The projections suggest that a current small surplus of places in this area will become a 
small deficit by the 2011/12 academic year (only 1 pupil per year group) rising to a deficit of 2 
forms of entry by 2015/16. 

Chart 7: Current number on roll compared to roll projections* and places available for the 
Central Planning Area  

Roll Projections - R to Yr 6 - Central Planning area

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Places Roll GLA Projections

* Send Harrow - January 2011 - CR - 4P - 2010 Round - 24-5-2011 1554.xls 

 16
48



 17

Voluntary Aided schools: (GLA Planning Area 6) 

Since voluntary aided schools in Harrow are generally full, GLA projections of pupil numbers at 
voluntary aided schools amount to a ‘top slice’ of the projected school roll. These projections do 
not reflect demand for VA school places.

Table 13: Reception projections for Voluntary Aided schools 
Primary projection area: Voluntary Aided schools 
Year Reception 

School
Year

January 
actual 

number
on roll 

Projected 
demand
(GLA) 

Places needed 
to maintain 

surplus
(GLA + 5%) 

Reception 
Places

available 

Proposed
Additional 

FE required*

Total Reception 
Places Proposed

05/06 433 450
06/07 440 450
07/08 449 450
08/09 469 480
09/10 506 510
10/11 477 480
11/12 501 526 480 2 540
12/13 530 557 510 2 570
13/14 532 559 480 3 570
14/15 534 561 480 3 570
15/16 534 561 480 3 570
16/17 535 562 480 3 570
17/18 534 561 480 3 570
18/19 530 557 480 3 570
19/20 520 546 480 2 540
20/21 513 539 480 2 540

Table 14: Primary projections for Voluntary Aided schools 
Primary projection area: Voluntary Aided Schools 
Years R to 6 only 

Year
January 

actual number 
on roll 

Projected demand 
(GLA) Places available * Surplus places GLA 

(%) 

05/06 3,044 3,147 3.27% 
06/07 3,073 3,162 2.81% 
07/08 3,114 3,150 1.14% 
08/09 3,144 3,180 1.13% 
09/10 3,206 3,240 0.81% 
10/11 3,255 3,270 0.52% 
11/12 3,321 3,300 -0.64% 
12/13 3,419 3,330 -2.67% 
13/14 3,506 3,360 -4.35% 
14/15 3,585 3,390 -5.75% 
15/16 3,643 3,390 -7.46% 
16/17 3,695 3,360 -9.97% 
17/18 3,733 3,360 -11.10% 
18/19 3,739 3,360 -11.28% 
19/20 3,708 3,360 -10.36% 
20/21 3,669 3,360 -9.20% 

49



Chart 8: Current number on roll compared to roll projections* and places available for Voluntary 
Aided Schools  

Roll Projections - R to Yr 6 - Voluntary Aided Schools

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Places Roll GLA Projections

* Send Harrow - January 2011 - CR - 4P - 2010 Round - 24-5-2011 1554.xls 

 18
50



 19

Secondary Schools 

Secondary school roll projections are presented on the basis of Years 7 to 11 (11 to 15 year 
olds).  Secondary school place planning is undertaken on a whole borough level and not in 
Planning Areas as the number of schools is small, transport links are good, and older pupils can 
be expected to travel further to school. 

Table 15: Secondary projections for years 7 to 11 in all High Schools
Secondary projections: All High Schools (includes Voluntary Aided) 
Years 7 to 11 only 

Year January actual 
number on roll 

Projected demand 
(GLA) Places available Surplus places GLA 

(%) 

07/08 10,739 9,122
08/09 10,659 9,072
09/10 10,538 9,060
10/11 10,473 11,040
11/12 10,420 11,130 6.38% 
12/13 10,326 11,160 7.47% 
13/14 10,269 11,190 8.23% 
14/15 10,388 11,220 7.42% 
15/16 10,569 11,160 5.30% 
16/17 10,822 11,100 2.50% 
17/18 11,098 11,100 0.02% 
18/19 11,341 11,100 -2.17% 
19/20 11,584 11,100 -4.36% 
20/21 11,785 11,100 -6.17% 

Table 15 and Chart 9 show that the GLA predicts a small decline in the number of pupils in 
Years 7 to 11 over the next few years.  This decline is projected to start increasing in 2014/15.
At its highest, in 2013, the surplus would amount to about 200 places in each year group across 
all Harrow’s high schools. 

The age of transfer took place in September 2010, with the change in entry to secondary 
education from the 12+ years to 11+ years.  It is not known if the number of pupils staying in 
Harrow’s schools at Year 7 will increase but this could have a significant effect on these figures.  

In September 2010, 90 additional places were created in Year 7, to accommodate any 
increases.  The pupil numbers in Year 7 and across high schools will be monitored closely as 
the school reorganisation embeds. 

The local authority is reviewing the projections for high school places and will plan to ensure 
sufficient places are available to meet the increased demand currently experienced in the 
primary sector.

51



Chart 9: Current number on roll compared to roll projections* and places available for all high 
schools, Years 7 to 11 

Roll Projections for All High Schools (Y7-11)

8,000

8,500

9,000

9,500

10,000

10,500

11,000

11,500

12,000

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Places Roll GLA Projections

 * Source: Send Harrow - January 2011 - CR - 4P - 2010 Round - 24-5-2011 1554.xls 
Note: Prior to September 2010, community school Year 7 places were in the primary sector. 

Post 2014, the number of secondary aged pupils is projected to rise as larger numbers of 
younger pupils move through to the secondary sector, with a small deficit in school places 
expected for September 2018. 

 20
52



Year 7 Projections for High Schools 

Table 16: Secondary projections for Year 7 in all High Schools
Secondary projections area: All High Schools (includes Voluntary Aided) 
Year 7 

School
Year

January 
actual 

number
on roll 

Projected 
demand
(GLA) 

Places needed 
to maintain 

surplus
(GLA + 5%) 

Year 7 
Places

available 

Proposed
Additional 

FE required*

Total Year 7 
Places Proposed

07/08 2,053
08/09 2,087
09/10 1,991
10/11 1,992
11/12 2,004 2,104 2,280 -6 2,100
12/13 1,940 2,037 2,220 -6 2,040
13/14 2,013 2,114 2,220 -4 2,100
14/15 2,108 2,213 2,220 0 2,220
15/16 2,143 2,250 2,220 1 2,250
16/17 2,200 2,310 2,220 3 2,310
17/18 2,237 2,349 2,220 4 2,340
18/19 2,287 2,401 2,220 6 2,400
19/20 2,374 2,493 2,220 9 2,490
20/21 2,378 2,497 2,220 9 2,490

* Proposed Additional FE calculates additional places needed to maintain 5% surplus 
Source: Send Harrow - January 2011 - CR - 4P - 2010 Round - 24-5-2011 1554.xls 

Chart 10: Current number on roll compared to roll projections* and places available for all high 
schools, Year 7 

All Schools ! Year 7 Roll Projections

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

Roll GLA Projections Places Projected places required

Send Harrow - January 2011 - CR - 4P - 2010 Round - 24-5-2011 1554.xls 
Note: Prior to September 2010, community school Year 7 places were in the primary sector. 

Table 16 and chart 10 show that the current number of year 7 places is sufficient for the 
projected number of pupils expected in Harrow’s year 7 until 2014/15.  A small deficit in places 
is projected for 2015/16, and is likely to continue and become more substantial by 2016/17.
This influx of pupils is inline with the large number of pupils coming into Harrow’s Reception 
year group currently and for the next few years. 

 21
53



 22

Section 3: Accuracy and Methodology 

Accuracy of the school roll projections (SRP) that are supplied by the GLA 

Table 17 shows the 2011 pupil numbers that were projected in previous years.  These 
projections were prepared by the GLA in 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010.  The percentage 
differences between the projections and the actual January 2011 rolls are relatively small for 
most of the ages and suggest that, over four years, the projections were very accurate indeed.   

However, the GLA has under projected with a -1.7% difference in 2007 to -2.5% in 2010. 

Table 17: Accuracy of the GLA school roll projections 2011 

January All 

4 5 10 11 15 5-10 11-15 5-15

Actual Rolls 2011 2,637 2,622 2,406 1,992 2,145 14,689 10,473 25,162

Projected in 2007 2,591 2,607 2,420 2,086 2,103 14,965 10,665 25,630

%
difference -1.7 -0.6 +0.6 +4.7 -2.0 +1.9 +1.8 +1.9

Projected in 2008 2,583 2,596 2,392 2,040 2,135 14,808 10,590 25,398

%
difference -2.0 -1.0 -0.6 +2.4 -0.5 +0.8 +1.1 +0.9

Projected in 2009 2,558 2,551 2,381 1,979 2,139 14,564 10,427 24,991

%
difference -3.0 -2.7 -1.0 -0.7 -0.3 -0.9 -0.4 -0.7

Projected in 2010 2,570 2,610 2,363 1,984 2,146 14,600 10,401 25,001

%
difference -2.5 -0.5 -1.8 -0.4 +0.0 -0.6 -0.7 -0.6

Source: Send Harrow - January 2011 - CR - 4P - 2010 Round - 24-5-2011 1554.xls 

Roll Projection Methodology 
The GLA’s roll projections are based on two methods. The projections are weighted towards the 
replacement ratio in the short term and the catchment ratio in the longer term.

Catchment ratios 
The underlying population can change over time due to a number of factors (for example, new 
housing, migration trends and fertility rates) and can run contrary to past trends in the school 
roll.  Information on population changes is therefore a vital part of longer-term school roll 
projections.

The catchment ratio is the ratio of pupils on roll in maintained schools in the borough to the 
number of people of the same age in the local population and this method is used to calculate a 
value for each of the four years of historical actual roll information for each year group.   An 
average is taken and this is used to calculate the number on roll next year for each year group 
given the number projected to be in the population next year.  This ratio is used to project 
school rolls each year up to 10 years ahead. 

This option can be used to project rolls where the local authority wishes to maintain a view of 
longer-range demand for school places. 

Roll Replacement ratios 
The best single predictor of the number of pupils on roll in any one year is the number of pupils 
on roll one year earlier.   For example, the best single predictor of the number of 9 year-olds on 

54



 23

roll in 2009 would be the number of 8 year-olds on roll in 2008. This method is known as the 
replacement ratio.

Replacement ratios reflect the net effect of gains and losses of pupils in age groups from one 
year to the next. This combines the effects of cross-border inflows and outflows, and the effects 
of pupils’ changes of school. Pupils who live in one borough and go to school in another are 
included in the actual rolls of the borough in which they attend school. They are included in the 
replacement ratio, which therefore takes account of cross-border movement. 

For each of the four years of historical roll data, a replacement ratio is calculated for each pair of 
individual year groups (for example, this year’s 8 year-olds used to project next year’s 9 year-
olds) and an average taken.  This is then used to calculate the projected number for subsequent 
years (up to 10 years ahead). 

This method is used to project numbers of pupils in individual groups aged 5 and above.  The 
ratio is applied to the actual roll data for the most recent year to produce the roll for the next 
year and is particularly useful where changes in the numbers on roll in a local authority do not 
reflect changes in the local population. 

Combined catchment and replacement (CR) ratios 
The combined catchment and replacement option combines the two average ratios C and R 
over the ten years of projections.  The first year of projections contains 100% replacement, the 
second year is 90% replacement and 10% catchment and so on until the 10th projection year 
(which contains 10% replacement and 90% catchment).  This is the standard method for 
projecting school rolls. 

Source - GLA Local Authority User Guide:  GLA School Roll Projection Service

55



56

This page is intentionally left blank



9

7

6 3

2

1

8

10

47

44

39

27

24

23

20

19

17

12

11

16

34

33

31

32

30

29

28
18

15

4 & 5

45 & 46

42 & 43

40 & 41 37 & 38

35 & 36

25 & 26

21 & 22
13 & 14

Harrow Primary Schools and Primary Planning Areas ±

0 21 kms

Produced by the GIS Team

© Crown copyright and database rights [year of supply or date of publication eg 2011] Ordnance Survey 100019206

No. School No. School No. School No. School
1 Aylward Primary School 13 Kenmore Park Infant and Nursery School 25 Roxbourne Infant School 37 Stanburn First School 4-7 years
2 Belmont School 14 Kenmore Park Junior School 26 Roxbourne Junior School 38 Stanburn Junior School
3 Camrose Primary School with Nursery 15 Krishna-Avanti Primary School 27 Roxeth Primary School 39 Vaughan Primary School
4 Cannon Lane First School (4-7 years) 16 Longfield Primary School 28 St.Anselm's Catholic Primary School 40 Weald Infant and Nursery School
5 Cannon Lane Junior School 17 Marlborough Primary School 29 St.Bernadette's Catholic Primary School 41 Weald Junior School
6 Cedars Manor School 18 Moriah Jewish Day School 30 St.George's Primary Catholic School  Harrow 42 Welldon Park Infant and Nursery School
7 Earlsmead Primary School 19 Newton Farm Nursery  Infant and Junior School 31 St.John's Church of England School 43 Welldon Park Junior School
8 Elmgrove Primary and Nursery 20 Norbury School 32 St.John Fisher Catholic Primary School 44 West Lodge Primary School
9 Glebe Primary School 21 Pinner Park Infant and Nursery School 33 St.Joseph's Catholic Primary School 45 Whitchurch First School and Nursery
10 Grange Primary School 22 Pinner Park Junior School 34 St.Teresa's Catholic Primary School and Nursery 46 Whitchurch Junior School
11 Grimsdyke School 23 Pinner Wood School 35 Stag Lane Infant and Nursery School 47 Whitefriars Community School
12 Heathland School 24 Priestmead Primary School and Nursery 36 Stag Lane Junior School

Legend

Primary_schools

Primary Planning Areas
Central

North East

North West

South East

South West

Background Paper 2

57



58

This page is intentionally left blank



Background Paper 3 

Schools in the Primary Planning Areas 

As at 1 September 2011 

The first three columns list the primary sector community schools in the five geographic Primary 
Planning Areas (PPA).  Voluntary aided schools form a separate PPA of their own.  However, 
they are listed in the fourth column with the two special schools to show within which 
geographic PPA they are located. 

North East Primary Planning Area (GLA Planning Area 1):

Combined Infant & Junior Infant Junior Voluntary aided
Aylward Stanburn Stanburn St John’s C of E 

Weald Weald
Whitchurch Whitchurch

North West Primary Planning Area (GLA Planning Area 2):

Combined Infant & Junior Infant Junior Voluntary aided 
West Lodge Cannon Lane Cannon Lane Moriah
Pinner Wood St John Fisher 
Grimsdyke St Teresa’s 
Longfield
Cedars Manor 

South East Primary Planning Area (GLA Planning Area 3):

Combined Infant & Junior Infant Junior Voluntary aided 
Glebe Kenmore Park Kenmore Park Krishna-Avanti 
Camrose Stag Lane Stag Lane St Bernadette’s 
Priestmead Special

Woodlands 

South West Primary Planning Area (GLA Planning Area 4):

Combined Infant & Junior Infant Junior Voluntary aided 
Earlsmead Roxbourne Roxbourne St George’s 
Heathland Welldon Park Welldon Park 
Grange
Newton Farm 
Roxeth Special
Vaughan Alexandra

Central Primary Planning Area (GLA Planning Area 5):

Combined Infant & Junior Infant Junior Voluntary aided 
Belmont Pinner Park Pinner Park St Anselm’s 
Elmgrove St Joseph’s 
Marlborough
Norbury
Whitefriars

59



60

This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT FOR: 
 

EDUCATION 
CONSULTATIVE FORUM 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

7 November 2011 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT – Local 
Authority Strategic Role for 
Education in Harrow – Update 
Paper 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Catherine Doran, Corporate Director of 
Children’s Services 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 
 

Enclosures: 
 

Annexe A - Summary of the DfE 
Schools White Paper and Education Bill 
Implications 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report provides the Education Consultative Forum with an update to the 
June 2011 report about the future strategic role of the Council for education in 
Harrow. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 11 
Pages 61 to 72 

61



 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
1. At its meeting on 27 June 2011, the Education Consultative Forum 

received an information report about the Local Authority’s Strategic Role 
for Education in Harrow outlining some of the changes to schools and the 
Council arising from the proposed Education Bill 2011. 

 
2. This report updates the Forum on developments in the areas described in 

the June report and adds commentary on new aspects of the emerging 
Local Authority education role for information. 

 
Section 3 – Further Information 
 
3. A report was presented to Cabinet at its meeting on 19 May 2011, which 

included an update from the Education Consultative Forum.  Cabinet 
agreed in principle to the education consultation mechanisms being 
reviewed and revised and recommendations being brought back to a 
future meeting of Cabinet.  Cabinet requested a further report be received 
in the Autumn to confirm the progress in the following areas: 

• Decision Making and Consultation Forum 
• Strategic Role for Schools 
• Support services for Schools. 

 
4. At its meeting on 27 June 2011, the Education Consultative Forum noted 

the information report and agreed that the role of the Forum would need to 
be re-considered as and when further detail of the White Paper proposals, 
and the subsequent legislation, was confirmed.  The Education Bill is 
currently in the Report Stage of the House of Lords and is likely to receive 
Royal Assent later this year or in early spring 2012. 

 
5. Attached at Annexe A is a summary of the DfE Schools White Paper and 

Education Bill Implications.  The Annexe summarises the future role of the 
Local Authority by key areas.  High level details are then provided on the 
emerging Government policy, the local position in Harrow and an up-date 
for October 2011.   

 
6. Work will be progressed by officers in the coming months to ensure that 

the Local Authority’s strategic responsibilities are delivered, principally in 
the implementation of the New Operating Model within Children’s 
Services. 

 
Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
7. There are no immediate financial implications arising from this report as 

the review will be undertaken from within existing resources.  If the review 
proposes changes to services these would be subject to further 
consideration and approval, with any financial implications highlighted and 
incorporated into the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

 

62



 

Section 5 – Equalities Implications 
 
8. An Equalities Impact Assessment has not been undertaken at this stage, 

and will be undertaken when officer work is progressed in relation to any 
future recommendations. 

 

Section 6 – Corporate Priorities  
 
9. These considerations will support the Council’s Corporate Priorities for 

2011-2012: 
• United and involved communities: a Council that listens and leads 
• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need 

 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:    Emma Stabler X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date:      17 October 2011 

   
 
 
Section 7 – Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Adrian Parker, Head of Education Strategy and School 
Organisation, Children’s Services, 020 8736 6522 
 
Background Papers:   
Report to Education Consultative Forum on 27 June 2011  
http://www2.harrow.gov.uk/documents/s89167/INFORMATION%20REPORT
%20-
%20Local%20Authority%20Strategic%20Role%20for%20Education%20in%2
0Harrow.pdf  
 
Report to Cabinet on 19 May 2011 - Local Authority’s Strategic Role for 
Education in Harrow 
http://www2.harrow.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=249&MId=60264 
 
The Importance of Teaching: The Schools White Paper 2010 
http://www.education.gov.uk/b0068570/the-importance-of-teaching/ 
 
The Education Bill 2011 
http://www.education.gov.uk/aboutdfe/departmentalinformation/educationbill/a
0073748/education-bill 
 

63



64

This page is intentionally left blank



An
ne
xe
 A
 

Su
mm

ary
 of
 th
e D
fE
 Sc
ho
ols
 W
hit
e P
ap
er 
an
d E
du
ca
tio
n B
ill 
Im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 

Th
e t

ab
le 
be
low

 su
mm

ari
se
s t
he
 fu

tur
e r

ole
 of
 th

e L
oc
al 
Au

tho
rity

 by
 ke

y a
rea

s. 
Hig

h l
ev
el 
de
tai
ls 
are

 th
en
 pr

ov
ide

d o
n t
he
 em

erg
ing

 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t p
oli
cy
, th

e l
oc
al 
po
sit
ion

 in
 H
arr

ow
 an

d a
n u

pd
ate

 fo
r O

cto
be
r 2

01
1. 

 Fu
nc
tio
n 

Go
ve
rn
me
nt 
Po
lic
y 

Lo
ca
l P
os
itio
n 

Ma
tte
rs 
for
 C
on
sid
era
tio
n 

Up
da
te 
Po
sit
ion
 O
cto
be
r 2
01
1 

Sc
ho
ol 
Pr
ov
isi
on
 

Su
pp
ort

 
pa
ren

ts 
an
d 

fam
ilie

s 
thr

ou
gh
 

pro
mo

tin
g a

 
go
od
 su

pp
ly 

of 
str
on
g 

sc
ho
ols

 
 Se

cu
rin
g 

su
ffic

ien
t 

hig
h q

ua
lity

 
pla

ce
s f
or 

0-
19
 in
clu

din
g 

ea
rly
 ye

ars
 

an
d S

EN
 

Ch
an
ge
s i
n b

rin
gin

g 
for

wa
rd 

pro
po
sa
ls 
for

 
ne
w 
sc
ho
ols

, fr
ee
 

sc
ho
ols

 an
d 

ac
ad
em

ies
. 

Pr
es
um

pti
on
 th
at 
all
 

ne
w 
sc
ho
ols

 w
ill b

e 
ac
ad
em

ies
. S

om
e 

ex
ce
pti
on
s d

o a
pp
ly 

an
d l
oc
al 
au
tho

riti
es
 

wil
l b
e a

ble
 to
 br

ing
 

for
wa

rd 
pro

po
sa
ls.
 Fo

r 
ex
am

ple
, a
 

rep
lac

em
en
t s
ch
oo
l o
r 

co
mb

ine
d p

rim
ary

 
sc
ho
ol 
for

 se
pa
rat

e 
inf
an
t a
nd
 ju
nio

r 
sc
ho
ols

.  
 Sc

ho
ol 
ca
pit
al 
fun

din
g 

– J
am

es
 R
ev
iew

 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s 

pu
bli
sh
ed
 Ap

ril 
20
11
  

• 
Sc

ho
ol 
Pla

ce
 Pl

an
nin

g 
Str

ate
gy
 an

d P
rim

ary
 

Sc
ho
ol 
ex
pa
ns
ion

 
pro

gra
mm

e t
o m

ee
t 

inc
rea

sin
g d

em
an
d. 

 • 
Am

alg
am

ati
on
 Po

licy
 

 • 
Pr
og
ram

me
 to
 in
cre

as
e 

AS
D 
pro

vis
ion

 in
 

ma
ins

tre
am

 sc
ho
ols

.  
 • 

Pr
es
su
re 

on
 sp

ec
ial
 

sc
ho
ol 
pla

ce
s 

 • 
Pr
oje

cte
d p

res
su
re 

on
 

hig
h s

ch
oo
l p
lac

es
 

 • 
Im

pa
ct 
of 
po
ten

tia
l 

ac
ad
em

y s
tat
us
 on

 
pla

ce
 pl
an
nin

g. 
 

1. 
Re

vie
w 
gu
ida

nc
e w

he
n 

av
ail
ab
le 
an
d i
mp

lica
tio
ns
 

for
 Sc

ho
ol 
Pla

ce
 Pl

an
nin

g 
Str

ate
gy
 an

d r
ela

ted
 

po
lici

es
 e.

g. 
na
tio
na
l 

Ac
ad
em

ies
 pr

og
ram

me
 

an
d l
oc
all
y A

ma
lga

ma
tio
n 

Po
licy

.  
 2. 

Ma
ins

tre
am

 co
nv
ers

ion
 

pro
ce
ss
 to
 ac

ad
em

y e
.g.
 

as
 in
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f 
am

alg
am

ati
on
 po

licy
. 

 3. 
Co

ns
ide

r im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 fo
r 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 an

d d
ec
isio

n 
ma

kin
g p

roc
es
s e

g 
Ed

uc
ati
on
 C
on
su
lta
tiv
e 

Fo
rum

.  
 4. 

Inv
es
tig
ate

 Ja
me

s 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s i
n l
ine

 
wit

h c
urr

en
t re

vie
w 
of 

sc
ho
ols

 ca
pit
al,
 in
clu

din
g 

de
ve
lop

ing
 sc

he
me

s, 
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 an

d 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 de

live
ry 
an
d 

go
ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
. 

i. 
Re

po
rt t

o C
ab
ine

t in
 Ju

ly 
on
 

Sc
ho
ol 
Ex

pa
ns
ion

 
Pr
og
ram

me
. 

 ii. 
W
ork

ing
 G
rou

p w
ith
 Pr

im
ary

 
He

ad
tea

ch
ers

 es
tab

lish
ed
. 

 iii. 
Co

ns
ult
ati
on
 on

 pr
op
os
ed
 

Pr
im
ary

 Ex
pa
ns
ion

 
pro

gra
mm

e f
rom

 10
 O
cto

be
r 

to 
11
 N
ov
em

be
r 2

01
1. 

 iv.
 Re

po
rt t

o C
ab
ine

t in
 

De
ce
mb

er 
wit

h 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
 fo
r s
ch
oo
ls 

to 
be
 ex

pa
nd
ed
. 

 v. 
Ini
tia
l d
isc

us
sio

ns
 w
ith
 

se
co
nd
ary

 an
d s

pe
cia

l s
ch
oo
l 

he
ad
tea

ch
ers

 to
 ad

dre
ss
 

ris
ing

 pu
pil
 nu

mb
ers

 
un
de
rw
ay
. 

 vi.
 Se

ve
n h

igh
 sc

ho
ols

 co
nv
ert

ed
 

to 
Ac

ad
em

y s
tat

us
 fro

m 
1 

Au
gu
st 
20
11
. 

 vii.
 

Ac
ad
em

ies
 To

olk
it 

de
ve
lop

ed
. B

rie
fin
g S

es
sio

n 

65



for
 Pr

im
ary

 Sc
ho
ols

 in
 Ju

ly 
20
11
. 

 viii
. 

Fre
e s

ch
oo
l a
pp
lica

tio
n b

y 
I-F

ou
nd
ati
on
 ac

ce
pte

d b
y 

DF
E. 

Ap
pli
ca
tio
n p

rop
os
es
 a 
2 

for
m 
en
try
 pr

im
ary

 an
d a

 6 
for

m 
en
try
 se

co
nd
ary

 sc
ho
ol 

in 
Ha

rro
w,
 to

 st
art

 in
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
12
. 

 ix.
 Th

e L
oc
al 
Au

tho
rity

 ha
s: 

a) 
su
bm

itte
d 1

1 a
pp
lica

tio
ns
 fo

r 
re-

bu
ild
ing

 th
rou

gh
 th
e 

Pr
ior
ity
 Sc

ho
ol 
Bu

ild
ing

 
pro

gra
mm

e; 
b) 

ide
nti
fie
d t

he
 ne

ed
 fo

r a
 

ca
pit
al 
pro

gra
mm

e, 
eit
he
r 

us
ing

 D
FE

 or
 lo
ca
l fu

nd
ing

, 
to 

im
ple

me
nt 
the

 pr
op
os
ed
 

Pr
im
ary

 Ex
pa
ns
ion

 
pro

gra
mm

e; 
c) 

ide
nti
fie
d m

od
es
t fu

nd
ing

 fo
r 

sc
ho
ols

 im
ple

me
nti
ng
 bu

lge
 

cla
ss
es
 in
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20
12
. 

 

66



 F
un
cti
on
 

Go
ve
rn
me
nt 
Po
lic
y 

Lo
ca
l P
os
itio
n 

Ma
tte
rs 
for
 C
on
sid
era
tio
n 

Up
da
te 
Po
sit
ion
 O
cto
be
r 2
01
1 

Sc
ho
ol 
Im
pr
ov
em
en
t 

Lo
ca
l 

au
tho

rity
 to

 
ch
am

pio
n 

int
ere

sts
 of
 

pu
pil
s a

nd
 

co
mm

un
itie

s 
by
 

ch
all
en
gin

g 
un
de
r 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 

an
d f
oc
us
 

on
 is
su
es
 

ac
ros

s m
ore

 
tha

n o
ne
 

sc
ho
ol.
 

Re
mo

va
l o
f S

ch
oo
l 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pa

rtn
ers

 
(S
IPs

) a
nd
 re

qu
ire
me

nt 
for

 sc
ho
ols

 to
 pu

bli
sh
 a 

Sc
ho
ol 
Pr
ofi
le.
  

 Go
ve
rnm

en
t to

 
inc

rea
se
 th
e d

ata
 

av
ail
ab
le 
on
 sc

ho
ols

 
inc

lud
ing

 pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
, 

ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

an
d n

ew
 

ind
ica

tor
s o

n p
up
il 

pro
gre

ss
.  

 Lo
ca
l a
uth

ori
tie
s t
o 

ch
all
en
ge
 un

de
r-

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 an

d 
un
de
rta

ke
 sc

rut
iny

 
 Se

cre
tar

y o
f S

tat
e t

o 
dir
ec
t a

 LA
 to
 cl
os
e 

sc
ho
ols

 ca
us
ing

 
co
nc
ern

.  
 Lo
ca
l A

uth
ori
tie
s t
o 

de
ter

mi
ne
 ow

n s
ch
oo
l 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
str
ate

gie
s. 

 Lo
ca
l A

uth
ori
tie
s t
o 

su
bm

it p
lan

s f
or 

sc
ho
ols

 ca
us
ing

 
co
nc
ern

 to
 th
e D

fE.
 

• D
ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f H

arr
ow

 
Sc

ho
ol 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 (H

SIP
) w

ith
 

eff
ec
t fr

om
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20
11
. 

 • E
du
ca
tio
n S

tra
teg

y a
nd
 

Sc
ho
ol 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on
 

se
rvi
ce
s (
ES

SO
) to

 
co
mm

iss
ion

 H
arr

ow
 

Sc
ho
ol 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 (H

SIP
) fo

r 
su
pp
ort

 to
 sc

ho
ols

.  

1. 
Co

nti
nu
ed
 su

pp
ort

 fo
r th

e 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 

HS
IP.

 
 2. 
Ex

plo
re 

the
 Lo

ca
l A

uth
ori
ty 

Sc
ho
ol 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
rol
e 

inc
lud

ing
, re

po
rtin

g t
o D

fE 
on
 sc

ho
ols

 ca
us
ing

 
co
nc
ern

, s
cru

tin
y f
un
cti
on
s 

an
d r

ep
ort

ing
 to
 m
em

be
rs.
 

 3. 
Se

cu
re 

su
ffic

ien
t c
ap
ac
ity
 

to 
su
pp
ort

 da
ta 
rev

iew
 an

d 
an
aly

sis
. 

 4. 
De

ve
lop

 th
e r

ole
 of
 

sc
ho
ols

 as
 un

ive
rsa

l 
pro

vid
ers

 w
ith
in 
the

 ne
w 

op
era

tin
g m

od
el 
for

 
ch
ild
ren

’s 
se
rvi
ce
s. 

i. 
Lo
ca
l A

uth
ori
ty 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 of

 
sc
ho
ols

 em
be
dd
ed
 as

 a 
res

po
ns
ibi
lity

 of
 Ed

uc
ati
on
 

Str
ate

gy
 an

d S
ch
oo
l 

Or
ga
nis

ati
on
 (E

SS
O)
. 

 ii. 
HS

IP 
lau

nc
he
d i
n S

ep
tem

be
r 

20
11
.  

 iii. 
 H
SIP

 co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 by

 
ES

SO
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 su
pp
ort

 fo
r 

all
 sc

ho
ols

, b
ut 
pa
rtic

ula
rly
 

tho
se
 sc

ho
ols

 ca
us
ing

 
co
nc
ern

. 
   

67



 Fu
nc
tio
n 

Go
ve
rn
me
nt 
Po
lic
y 

Lo
ca
l P
os
itio
n 

Ma
tte
rs 
for
 C
on
sid
era
tio
n 

Up
da
te 
Po
sit
ion
 O
cto
be
r 2
01
1 

Ad
mi
ss
ion
s a
nd
 A
cc
es
s 

Lo
ca
l 

au
tho

riti
es
 

wil
l c
o-

ord
ina

te 
ad
mi
ss
ion

s 
an
d e

ns
ure

 
fai
r a

cc
es
s 

to 
all
 

sc
ho
ols

 as
 

pa
rt o

f th
eir
 

de
mo

cra
tic
 

ma
nd
ate

 to
 

ac
t o
n 

be
ha
lf o

f it
s 

po
pu
lat
ion

. 
 

Re
mo

ve
 th
e 

req
uir
em

en
t to

 ha
ve
 an

 
Ad

mi
ss
ion

s F
oru

m 
an
d 

rep
ort

 to
 th
e S

ch
oo
ls 

Ad
jud

ica
tor

 an
nu
all
y. 

 Sim
pli
fy 
the

 Ad
mi
ss
ion

s 
Co

de
 of
 Pr

ac
tic
e 

fol
low

ing
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
. 

• 
Cu

rre
nt 

op
era

tio
n o

f th
e 

pa
n-L

on
do
n c

o-
ord

ina
ted

 ad
mi
ss
ion

s 
for

 al
l s
ch
oo
ls 

co
mm

un
ity
 an

d 
vo
lun

tar
y a

ide
d. 

 • 
Po

ten
tia
l s
erv

ice
 fo

r 
bu
y-b

ac
k t
o a

ca
de
mi
es
. 

1. 
Re

sp
on
d t

o t
he
 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 on

 th
e 

Ad
mi
ss
ion

s C
od
e o

f 
Pr
ac
tic
e. 

 2. 
Mo

nit
or 

im
pa
ct 
of 

ac
ad
em

ies
.  

 3. 
Co

ns
ide

r o
pti
on
s f
or 

co
mm

erc
ial
 de

ve
lop

me
nt.

 
 4. 

Co
ns
ide

r fu
nc
tio
n r

ole
 of
 

the
 Ad

mi
ss
ion

s F
oru

m.
 

 

i. 
Re

sp
on
se
 to
 Ad

mi
ss
ion

s 
Co

de
 of
 Pr

ac
tic
e a

nd
 Ap

pe
als

 
Co

de
 of
 Pr

ac
tic
e C

on
su
lta
tio
n 

ag
ree

d b
y A

dm
iss

ion
s F

oru
m 

Ju
ly 
20
11
.  

 ii. 
Fa

ir A
cc
es
s P

an
el 
an
d 

ad
dit
ion

al 
Ye

ar 
1 c

las
s a

t 
Ca

mr
os
e P

rim
ary

 sc
ho
ol 
us
ed
 

to 
pro

vid
e s

ch
oo
l p
lac

es
 fo

r a
ll 

Ha
rro

w 
res

ide
nts

 in
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
11
. 

 iii. 
Aw

ait
ing

 ou
tco

me
s o

f 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t c
on
su
lta
tio
n o

n 
Ad

mi
ss
ion

s C
od
e o

f P
rac

tic
e. 

 iv.
 Co

ns
ult
ati
on
 on

 Se
pt 
20
13
 

ad
mi
ss
ion

s a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 
in 

Au
tum

n. 
De

ter
mi
na
tio
n b

y 1
5 

Ap
ril 
20
12
 

 v. 
Dr
aft

 Ad
mi
ss
ion

s S
erv

ice
 

Le
ve
l A

gre
em

en
t in

 pl
ac
e f

or 
ac
ad
em

ies
.  

  

68



 
Fu
nc
tio
n 

Go
ve
rn
me
nt 
Po
lic
y 

Lo
ca
l P
os
itio
n 

Ma
tte
rs 
for
 C
on
sid
era
tio
n 

Up
da
te 
Po
sit
ion
 O
cto
be
r 2
01
1 

SE
N 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t’s
 

SE
N 
an
d 

Dis
ab
ility

 
Gr
ee
n P

ap
er 

 
- S

up
po
rt a

nd
 

As
pir
ati
on
 

Th
e g

ree
n p

ap
er 

se
ts 

ou
t a
 w
ide

 ra
ng
e o

f 
pro

po
sa
ls 
aim

ed
 at
 

cre
ati
ng
 a 

rad
ica

lly 
dif
fer

en
t s
ys
tem

 to
 

su
pp
ort

 be
tte

r li
fe 

ou
tco

me
s f
or 

ch
ild
ren

 
wit

h S
EN

 or
 di
sa
bil
ity
. 

 

• 
Cu

rre
nt 

Ch
ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce
s o

pe
rat

ing
 

mo
de
l m

ak
es
 re

fer
en
ce
 

to 
the

 G
ree

n P
ap
er.

 It 
pro

po
se
s s

om
e c

ha
ng
es
 

for
 th

e S
EN

 se
rvi
ce
s 

inc
lud

ing
 co

ntr
ibu

tin
g 

ed
uc
ati
on
 ps

yc
ho
log

y 
res

ou
rce

 to
 th
e 

int
eg
rat

ed
 Se

rvi
ce
s 

Te
am

s. 
Ho

we
ve
r, t

he
 

ne
w 
op
era

tin
g m

od
el 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 st
ate

s t
ha
t 

the
 se

rvi
ce
 w
ill b

e 
rev

iew
ed
 w
he
n t

he
 

ou
tco

me
s o

f th
e G

ree
n 

Pa
pe
r a

re 
kn
ow

n. 
 • 
SE

N 
en
ga
ge
me

nt 
in 
the

 
pla

nn
ing

 of
 sc

ho
ol 

pro
vis

ion
, e

sp
ec
ial
ly 

sp
ec
ial
 sc

ho
ols

. 

1. 
Co

ns
ide

r th
e i
mp

lica
tio
ns
 

of 
the

 G
ree

n P
ap
er 

an
d 

the
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
the

 
ES

SO
 fu
nc
tio
n a

nd
 ne

w 
op
era

tin
g m

od
el.
  

 2. 
Ma

int
ain

 es
se
nti
al 

co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o t
he
 sc

ho
ol 

pla
ce
 pl
an
nin

g f
un
cti
on
. 

i.  
On

-go
ing

 

69



 Fu
nc
tio
n 

Go
ve
rn
me
nt 
Po
lic
y 

Lo
ca
l P
os
itio
n 

Ma
tte
rs 
for
 C
on
sid
era
tio
n 

Up
da
te 
Po
sit
ion
 O
cto
be
r 2
01
1 

Ot
he
r S
tat
uto
ry 
Fu
nc
tio
ns
: e
.g.
 G
ov
ern
or
s. 

 
In 

ad
dit
ion

, to
 th
e 

pro
vis

ion
s w

ith
in 
the

 Bi
ll 

the
re 

ne
ed
s t
o b

e 
co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 of
 th
e 

co
nti
nu
ing

 
res

po
ns
ibi
litie

s o
f th

e 
loc

al 
au
tho

rity
.  

• 
Pr
op
os
als

 fo
r th

e 
sta

tut
ory

 fu
nc
tio
ns
 to

 be
 

inc
lud

ed
 w
ith
in 
the

 
Ed

uc
ati
on
 St

rat
eg
y a

nd
 

Sc
ho
ol 
Or
ga
nis

ati
on
 

(E
SS

O)
 st
ran

d o
f 

Ch
ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce
s. 

  • 
Co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 of
 th
os
e 

res
po
ns
ibi
litie

s 
tra

ns
fer

red
 to

 
ac
ad
em

ies
. 

1. 
De

ve
lop

 th
e E

SS
O 

fun
cti
on
 al
ign

ed
 w
ith
 th
e 

Bil
l a
nd
 re

ma
ini
ng
 

fun
cti
on
s. 
 

i. 
Sta

tut
ory

 re
sp
on
sib

iliti
es
 fo

r 
ed
uc
ati
on
 em

be
dd
ed
 in
 ne

w 
ES

SO
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
 or

 
ide

nti
fie
d i
n o

the
r D

ivis
ion

s 
of 

Ch
ild
ren

s S
erv

ice
s. 

 ii. 
Ap

po
int
me

nt 
of 
LA

 
go
ve
rno

rs 
to 

ac
ad
em

ies
 

co
mp

let
ed
. 

 Fu
nc
tio
n 

Go
ve
rn
me
nt 
Po
lic
y 

Lo
ca
l P
os
itio
n 

Ma
tte
rs 
for
 C
on
sid
era
tio
n 

Up
da
te 
Po
sit
ion
 O
cto
be
r 2
01
1 

Sc
ho
ol 
Su
pp
or
t S
erv
ice
 Pr
ov
ide
r 

 
Inc

rea
sin

gly
 

au
ton

om
ou
s s

ch
oo
ls 

ex
erc

isin
g c

ho
ice

 of
 

pro
vid

er 
for

 se
rvi
ce
s 

an
d a

 su
pp
ort

 fro
m 

the
 

go
ve
rnm

en
t to

 im
pro

ve
 

va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey
 th

rou
gh
 

pro
cu
rem

en
t s
up
po
rt. 

 

• 
Pr
ov
ide

r o
f a

 ra
ng
e o

f 
se
rvi
ce
s, 
ac
ros

s t
he
 

co
un
cil 

thr
ou
gh
 se

rvi
ce
 

lev
el 
ag
ree

me
nts

. 
Im

pa
cts

 of
 sc

ho
ols

 
be
co
mi
ng
 ac

ad
em

ies
 or

 
se
ek
ing

 al
ter

na
tiv
e 

pro
vid

ers
 of

 se
rvi
ce
s. 

• 
Ac

ad
em

ies
 W

ork
ing

 
Gr
ou
p c

on
sid

eri
ng
 

im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 fo

r th
e 

Co
un
cil 

of 
the

 sc
ho
ols

’ 
ch
an
gin

g s
tat

us
 

1. 
Co

ns
ide

r a
 co

rpo
rat

e 
ap
pro

ac
h t
o r

ev
iew

ing
 ho

w 
se
rvi
ce
s c

an
 be

 de
ve
lop

ed
 

for
 th

e m
ark

et 
pla

ce
. 

 2. 
Es

tab
lish

 co
rpo

rat
e 

me
ch
an
ism

 to
 m
an
ag
e t

he
 

tra
ns
fer

 of
 sc

ho
ols

 to
 

ac
ad
em

y s
tat
us
. 

i. 
Re

vis
ed
 ap

pro
ac
h t
o 

pro
vis

ion
 of

 se
rvi
ce
s t
o a

ll 
sc
ho
ols

 be
ing

 de
ve
lop

ed
 by

 
the

 Lo
ca
l a
uth

ori
ty 
in 

au
tum

n 2
01
1. 

 ii. 
Co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 of
 Lo

ca
l 

Au
tho

rity
 se

rvi
ce
 le
ve
l 

ag
ree

me
nts

 w
ith
 

Ac
ad
em

ies
 di
sc
us
se
d w

ith
 

he
ad
tea

ch
ers

 an
d b

us
ine

ss
 

ma
na
ge
rs 
in 
su
mm

er 
20
11
. 

Re
vis

ed
 se

rvi
ce
 

ag
ree

me
nts

 to
 be

 pr
op
os
ed
 

an
d/o

r te
nd
eri
ng
 fo

r s
erv

ice
 

pro
vis

ion
 by

 Lo
ca
l A

uth
ori
ty 

in 
au
tum

n 2
01
1. 

70



  
Fu
nc
tio
n 

Go
ve
rn
me
nt 
Po
lic
y 

Lo
ca
l P
os
itio
n 

Ma
tte
rs 
for
 C
on
sid
era
tio
n 

Up
da
te 
Po
sit
ion
 O
cto
be
r 2
01
1 

Sc
ho
ols
 Fo
ru
m 
an
d S
ch
oo
l F
un
din
g 

 
Pr
inc

ipl
e t

o 
de
vo
lve

 
ma

xim
um

 
fun

din
g t
o 

sc
ho
ols

, 
pro

vid
e t

oo
ls 

to 
en
su
re 

eff
icie

nt 
us
e o

f 
res

ou
rce

s a
nd
 

for
 sc

ho
ols

 to
 

rea
lise

 
eff
icie

nc
ies

 
thr

ou
gh
 

pro
cu
rem

en
t 

an
d b

ac
k 

off
ice

 sa
vin

gs
 

Ed
uc
ati
on
 Fu

nd
ing

 
Ag

en
cy
 es

tab
lish

ed
 to
 

dir
ec
tly
 fu

nd
 ac

ad
em

ies
 

an
d r

ep
lac

e Y
PL

A. 
 Pr
op
os
als

 fo
r a

 N
ati
on
al 

Sc
ho
ol 
Fu

nd
ing

 Fo
rm

ula
.  

 Int
rod

uc
tio
n o

f p
up
il 

pre
mi
um

. 
 Ali
gn
ing

 fu
nd
ing

 fo
r p

os
t 

16
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
e.g

. s
ch
oo
ls 

an
d s

ixt
h f
orm

 co
lle
ge
s. 

 Ja
me

s R
ev
iew

 – 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s 

pu
bli
sh
ed
 Ap

ril 
20
11
. 

• 
Sc

ho
ols

 Fo
rum

 
is 
the

  d
ec
isio

n 
ma

kin
g f
oru

m 
for

 th
e S

ch
oo
ls 

Fu
nd
ing

 
Fo

rm
ula

. 
 • 

As
se
ss
ing

 
fin
an
cia

l 
im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 of
 

ac
ad
em

y 
sta

tus
.  

 

1. 
Re

sp
on
d t

o t
he
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
 on

 
the

 na
tio
na
l fu

nd
ing

 fo
rm

ula
. 

 2. 
Ex

plo
re 

de
cis

ion
 m
ak
ing

 
pro

ce
ss
es
 re

 fu
nd
ing

 
 3. 
Co

ns
ide

r th
e i
mp

lica
tio
ns
 of

 th
e 

Ja
me

s R
ev
iew

 
Re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
. 

 4. 
Ac

ad
em

y i
mp

lica
tio
ns
 

i. 
Re

sp
on
se
 to
 th
e f

irs
t a
nd
 

se
co
nd
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
s o

n t
he
  

Na
tio
na
l F
un
din

g F
orm

ula
 

ret
urn

ed
 to
 D
FE

. O
utc

om
es
 

ex
pe
cte

d l
ate

 au
tum

n. 
 ii. 
On

-go
ing

 re
vie

w 
of 

the
 

im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 fo

r th
e L

oc
al 

Au
tho

rity
 an

d i
ts 
se
rvi
ce
s, 

an
d f
or 

ma
int
ain

ed
 sc

ho
ols

, 
of 

top
 sl
icin

g L
A b

ud
ge
ts 
for

 
ac
ad
em

y f
un
din

g. 
 

 iii. 
Co

rpo
rat

e a
pp
oin

tm
en
t o
f 

int
eri
m 
ma

ng
er 

to 
lea

d 
rev

iew
. 

   
  

71



72

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report sets out the outcome of the allocation of places for the 2011-12 
academic year. 
 
To provide Members of the Education Consultative Forum with information 
about the allocation of places in Harrow community and voluntary aided 
schools for the 2011-12 academic year. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
 
 

REPORT FOR: 
 

EDUCATION 
CONSULTATIVE FORUM 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

7 November 2011  

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT - 
Outcomes of Rising 5 and 11+ 
allocations for 2011-12 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 
 

Adrian Parker, Head of Education 
Strategy and School Organisation 

Exempt: 
 

No  
 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1 - Rising 5 allocation 
Appendix 2 - 11+ allocation 
 

  

Agenda Item 12 
Pages 73 to 80 

73



 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
This report updates members of the Forum on the outcomes of the allocation 
of places for Reception class and 11+ transfer for the 2011-12 academic year. 
 
Appendix 1 gives details of how places were allocated to reception classes in 
Harrow’s community primary schools.  This year is the first year that rising 5 
applications have been co-ordinated across 33 London Boroughs.  Parents 
had to apply through their home authority and each applicant only received 
one offer. 
 
Appendix 2 gives information about the 11+ transfer allocation.  All Harrow 
applicants were offered a high school place to start in September 2011. 
 
The overall successful first preferences over the past three years for transfer 
to Harrow community schools are as follows: 
 
 
ALLOCATIONS 
 

2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 

Reception 
 

79% 77% 74% 

11+ transfer 
 

81% 87% N/A 
  
To meet the demand for reception places, 8 bulge classes were opened for 
September 2011.  All on time Harrow applicants were offered a school place 
to start in September 2011. 
 
 

Section 3 – Further Information 
 
All relevant information is detailed in the report. 
 
 
Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
Section 5 – Equalities Implications 
 

There are no equalities implications arising from this report. 
 
Section 6 – Corporate Priorities  
 
This report supports the Corporate Priority to improve support for vulnerable 
people. Monitoring the admission arrangements to ensure there is 
consistency and reliability in the approach to school admissions supports the 
vulnerable and hard to reach in the community. 

74



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\5\2\AI00074250\$cnez3w3v.doc 

 
 
 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:    Emma Stabler X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date      20 October 2011 

   
 
 
Section 7 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Noreen Severyn, Deputy Manager, Admissions Service, 
020 8424 1025 
 
Background Papers:  None 
 
 

75



76

This page is intentionally left blank



 Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1: 
all

oc
ati

on
 to

 re
ce

pti
on

 cl
as

se
s i

n H
arr

ow
’s 

co
mm

un
ity

 pr
im

ar
y 

sc
ho

ols
   

 
20

11
/1

2 
  

  
  

 

SC
HO
OL
 

Pla
ce
s 

av
ail
ab
le 

To
tal
 nu
mb
er 

of 
pr
efe
ren
ce
s 

ex
pr
es
se
d 

tot
al 

OF
FE
RS
 
SE
N 

CL
A 

ME
D 
 

CH
ILD
 

ME
D 
  

PA
RE
NT
 
SIB
LIN
G 

DI
ST
AN
CE
 

off
ere
d 

to 
dis
tan
ce
 

in 
mi
les
 

To
tal
 no
. 

ex
pr
es
se
d 

sc
ho
ol 
as
 

1s
t p
ref
 

 1s
t 

pr
efs
 

off
ere
d 

% 
of 
1s
t 

ran
ke
d 

off
ere
d 

Su
cc
es
sfu
l 

Ap
pe
als
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
Ay
lw
ard
 

60
 

19
7 

60
 
  

  
  

  
31
 

29
 

0.7
67
 

67
 

53
 

79
.1

0%
 

  
Be
lm
on
t 

60
 

26
4 

60
 
  

  
  

  
28
 

32
 

0.4
33
 

68
 

53
 

77
.9

4%
 

  
Ca
mr
os
e 

30
 

12
2 

30
 
  

  
  

  
10
 

20
 

0.5
63
 

33
 

26
 

78
.7

9%
 

  
Ca
nn
on
 

La
ne
 

90
 

50
8 

90
 
  

  
  

  
40
 

50
 

0.4
26
 

11
9 

83
 

69
.7

5%
 

1 
Ce
da
rs 

90
 

13
6 

90
 
  

  
  

  
28
 

62
 

1.8
7 

58
 

47
 

81
.0

3%
 

  
Ea
rls
me
ad
 

60
 

12
3 

60
 
  

  
  

  
20
 

40
 

3.1
37
 

34
 

27
 

79
.4

1%
 

  
Elm

gr
ov
e 

90
 

24
0 

90
 

1 
  

  
  

34
 

56
 

2.3
15
 

67
 

61
 

91
.0

4%
 

  
Gl
eb
e 

90
 

21
1 

90
 
  

  
  

  
31
 

59
 

2.9
31
 

58
 

56
 

96
.5

5%
 

  
Gr
an
ge
 

90
 

15
8 

90
 
  

  
  

  
26
 

64
 

1.2
57
 

45
 

42
 

93
.3

3%
 

  
Gr
im
sd
yk
e 

60
 

35
9 

60
 

1 
  

1 
  

25
 

33
 

0.4
92
 

77
 

58
 

75
.3

2%
 

  
He
ath
lan
d 

90
 

22
2 

90
 
  

  
  

  
37
 

53
 

3.1
88
 

72
 

66
 

91
.6

7%
 

  
Ke
nm
or
e 

Pa
rk 

12
0 

23
4 

12
0 

  
  

  
  

47
 

73
 

2.0
9 

72
 

66
 

91
.6

7%
 

  
Lo
ng
fie
ld 

90
 

46
0 

90
 

2 
  

  
  

26
 

62
 

0.5
53
 

77
 

54
 

70
.1

3%
 

  
Ma
rlb
or
ou
gh
 

60
 

34
5 

60
 
  

  
  

  
27
 

33
 

0.2
26
 

10
4 

56
 

53
.8

5%
 

  
Ne
wt
on
 

Fa
rm
 

30
 

50
6 

30
 
  

  
  

  
10
 

20
 

0.1
43
 

13
3 

30
 

22
.5

6%
 

  
No
rb
ur
y 

90
 

29
6 

90
 
  

  
  

  
23
 

67
 

0.5
51
 

87
 

68
 

78
.1

6%
 

  
Pin
ne
r P
ark
 

12
0 

55
7 

12
0 

  
  

  
  

31
 

89
 

0.8
14
 

10
4 

91
 

87
.5

0%
 

  
Pin
ne
r 

Wo
od
 

60
 

16
4 

60
 
  

  
  

  
20
 

40
 

1.7
58
 

34
 

31
 

91
.1

8%
 

  
Pr
ies
tm
ea
d 

90
 

38
0 

90
 
  

  
  

  
41
 

49
 

0.5
99
 

10
8 

87
 

80
.5

6%
 

  
Ro
xb
ou
rn
e 

90
 

25
4 

90
 
  

1 
  

  
32
 

57
 

0.8
71
 

63
 

53
 

84
.1

3%
 

  
Ro
xe
th 

60
 

25
8 

60
 
  

  
  

  
21
 

35
 

0.4
89
 

70
 

45
 

64
.2

9%
 

  
St
ag
 La
ne
 

90
 

22
0 

90
 

1 
  

  
  

44
 

45
 

0.3
35
 

10
6 

84
 

79
.2

5%
 

  
St
an
bu
rn
 

12
0 

47
7 

12
0 

1 
  

  
1 

46
 

72
 

0.9
16
 

11
5 

95
 

82
.6

1%
 

  
Va
ug
ha
n 

60
 

29
5 

60
 
  

  
1 

  
26
 

33
 

0.2
96
 

85
 

58
 

68
.2

4%
 

  
We
ald
 

12
0 

18
9 

12
0 

  
  

  
  

35
 

85
 

1.8
24
 

59
 

53
 

89
.8

3%
 

  
We
lld
on
 

Pa
rk 

60
 

18
7 

60
 
  

  
  

  
33
 

27
 

0.4
79
 

66
 

56
 

84
.8

5%
 

  
We
st 
Lo
dg
e 

90
 

50
5 

90
 
  

  
  

  
54
 

36
 

0.3
8 

16
5 

90
 

54
.5

5%
 

  
Wh
itc
hu
rch
 

90
 

55
8 

90
 
  

  
  

1 
32
 

57
 

0.6
56
 

13
1 

84
 

64
.1

2%
 

  
Wh
ite
fri
ars
 

60
 

13
3 

60
 
  

  
  

  
19
 

41
 

0.5
12
 

42
 

37
 

88
.1

0%
 

  

To
ta

ls
 

2,3
10
 

85
58
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

 

77



78

This page is intentionally left blank



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

2: 
Ad

mi
ss

ion
s t

o H
igh

 Sc
ho

ol 
(11

+) 
for

 th
e 2

01
1/1

2 A
ca

de
mi

c 
Ye

ar 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Community 
High Schools 
2011/12 

PAN - 
Planned  

Admissions 
Number 
SEN 

Children   
Looked After 

Medical 
Children 

Medical     
Parent 

Sibling Link 

Random 
Alloc+/ 
Distance 

Total places 
offered  

1st pref apps 

Tie-break 
distance 
Offered to 
(miles) 

1st pref offers 

% 1st pref 
success 

Appeals 
heard 

Appeals 
success 

Be
ntl

ey
 W

oo
d 

18
0 

2 
0 

0 
0 

34
 

14
4 

18
0 

14
2 

  
14

2 
10

0%
 

  
  

Ca
no

ns
 

18
0 

1 
1 

1 
0 

33
 

14
4 

18
0 

12
0 

  
12

0 
10

0%
 

  
  

Ha
rro

w 
18

0 
1 

0 
0 

0 
15

 
13

8 
15

4 
50

 
  

50
 

10
0%

 
  

  

Ha
tch

 En
d 

30
0 

5 
1 

0 
0 

81
 

21
3 

30
0 

17
2 

  
17

2 
10

0%
 

  
  

No
we

r H
ill 

30
0 

7 
2 

1 
0 

12
0 

17
0 

30
0 

35
2 

1.
00

2m
 

22
7 

64
% 

42
 

4 

Pa
rk 

30
0 

5 
1 

1 
0 

85
 

20
8 

30
0 

28
1 

0.
96

2m
 

23
0 

82
% 

11
 

1 

Ro
ok

s H
ea

th 
27

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
45

 
15

1 
19

6 
79

 
  

79
 

10
0%

 
  

  

Wh
itm

ore
 

27
0 

11
 

0 
0 

0 
79

 
18

0 
27

0 
31

6 
0.

87
4m

 
21

0 
66

% 
20

 
1 

TO
TA

LS 
19
80
 

32
 

5 
3 

0 
49
2 

12
04
 

18
80
 

15
12
 

  
12
30
 

  
73
 

6 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

79



80

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
REPORT FOR: 
 

EDUCATION 
CONSULTATIVE FORUM 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

7 November 2011 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT -  
Academies Update 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Adrian Parker, Head of Education 
Strategy and School Organisation  
 

Exempt: 
 

No 
 

Enclosures: 
 

None 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary  
 
 
This report provides Members an up-date on the conversion of 7 high schools 
to academy status. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 13 
Pages 81 to 86 

81



Section 2 – Report 
 
Introduction 
1. On 1 August 2011, 7 high schools in Harrow converted to academies.  

The schools are Bentley Wood, Canons High, Harrow High, Hatch End, 
Nower Hill, Park, and Rooks Heath College.  The academy conversion 
process and progress was reported to Members including three reports 
to Education Consultative Forum in March, April and June 2011.  

 
Options considered 
2. Harrow has a history of good partnership working between Council, 

schools, governors, parents and young people.  In the report to the 
Education Consultative Forum in April, elected members stated their 
position on academies and their preference for schools to remain within 
the family of schools in the borough.  However, they confirmed their 
commitment that the Council would support the schools and work in 
partnership with them regardless of the outcome regarding academy 
status. 

 
3. The decision to convert to academy status lies with the governing 

bodies of schools and the secretary of state.  
 
Current situation 
4. Outstanding issues reported to EdCF at the report in June 2011, were 

resolved including the pension arrangements for transferring staff. In 
July a briefing session was held for governors and headteachers 
across school sectors to outline the process to become an academy 
and highlighted some key issues to consider.  

 
5. Officers are unaware of other schools considering academy status, 

though one infant sector school has registered interest with the 
Department for Education. However, officers have a comprehensive 
set of documents to support the process should other schools consider 
academy status.  

 
Other Matters Arising 
6. There are a small number of issues that are being addressed by the 

council as a result of the schools becoming academies. The most 
significant of these issues is around funding which is further 
complicated because of the infancy of the academy status and the 
emerging government policy. The key points are outlined below. 

 
School Funding Consultation and Academy Funding. 

7. Before the Academies were established, all Harrow Schools were 
funded by the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).  This is allocated to 
Harrow based on pupil numbers.  Most of this funding is passed to 
schools although some of this funding is retained by the local authority 
to fund central expenditure.  This is mainly specialist education needs 
(SEN) provision. From 1 August 2011, the Academies received their 
funding direct from the government via the Young Peoples Learning 
Agency (YPLA).  The DSG funding to Harrow has been reduced by the 

82



amount now provided directly to the academies.  Officers have been 
working with the YPLA to ensure that the clawback is correct.  

 
8. From 1 August 2011, the Academy budgets included extra funding for 

the additional responsibilities taken on.  This is known as Local 
Authority Central Spend Equivalent Grant (LACSEG).  

 
Government Consultation on School Funding 

9. The government is reviewing funding for all schools, including 
Academies.  In April 2011, the government launched an initial 
consultation on school funding School Funding Reform: Rationale and 
Principles.  This has been followed with further consultations including 
Proposals for a Fairer Funding System in July 2011 and Future 
Arrangements for LACSEG.  The implementation timetable for the 
proposed changes is yet to be confirmed but it will be 2013/14 at the 
earliest.  There will be transitional arrangements to avoid school budget 
turbulence though the details are not known. 

 
Service Level Agreements 

10. All schools, including academies are able to purchase services from 
the local authority or other providers.  Harrow Council has a range of 
service level agreements that schools buy.  These include building 
maintenance, legal services, payroll, music service and cleaning.  This 
is a considerable income to the council of approximately £4.5m. 

 
11. The 7 academies agreed to continue their existing SLA with the 

Council until March 2012.  The Council are working to develop their 
services to maintain and build their customer base and have employed 
an Interim Commercialisation Manager to bring this work together.  

 
12. The commercialisation project has been initiated to identify and 

maximise opportunities for increasing external income and to minimise 
any potential losses of income from schools switching to private sector 
providers.  The project is structured into three themes: 

 
• External Fees & Charges  
• Services to Schools (Service Level Agreements)  
• Academy tendering programme 
 

13. The focus for the Fees & Charges workstream will be to secure 
agreement of a charging strategy which will be closely aligned to the 
Council’s Corporate Priorities, protecting vulnerable groups, delivering 
policy intentions, providing a clear narrative on subsidy and raising 
revenue from key external sources.   

 
14. Project work in Services to Schools is initially focussed on delivery 

standards and making an active response to the satisfaction survey 
results.  Many providers have been given very positive feedback from 
the schools; others have not delivered the expectations of their 
customers.  The project is aiming to investigate and refocus services 
where failures have been noted, and expected improvements will be 
highlighted and explained in the 2012/13 SLA offer that will be sent to 

83



all schools in December 2011.  Work is also progressing on designing 
some new services to schools which amongst others is likely to include 
a procurement and purchasing service.  

 
15. Academy schools are assessing the tendering options for Legal 

Services, Payroll & Contracts and Human Resources.  The Council are 
working proactively with the Academy tendering group and are 
intending to submit tenders at the point when formal tendering 
processes are initiated.  

Section 3 - Further Information 
 
All relevant information is contained within the report. 
 
Section 4 - Financial Implications 
 
16. Following conversion the academies receive their funding from the 

Young People’s Learning Agency (YPLA).  In 2011/12 the council is 
expecting the YPLA to clawback DSG in respect of the school budgets 
of £29.1m.  Although all the data on the clawback has been submitted 
to the DfE they have yet to confirm these totals.  

 
17. The DfE will also clawback a further £126k of Dedicated Schools Grant 

(DSG) in respect of central expenditure services where duties have 
transferred to the Academies.  These include admissions, the Ethnic 
Minority Achievement Service and some Harrow Tuition Service spend 
on behavioural support.  If the loss of DSG is not recouped through 
charging for these services then these services will need to look at 
alternative ways of meeting the resulting budget pressure. 

 
18. The Academies also receive Local Authority Central Spend Equivalent 

Grant (LACSEG) in respect of local authority funded services.  The DfE 
are currently funding this element of LACSEG from a national top slice 
of local government funding in 2011/12 and 2012/13.  In Harrow this 
top slice totalled £1m across the 2 years.  One of the key issues was 
that the top slice impacted all LAs equally and took no account of the 
number of academies that actually convert.  

 
19. In the summer the DfE issued a consultation proposing that the 

reduction to LA Formula Grant should reflect the cost to the DfE of 
providing LACSEG funding to academies.  As the actual number of 
conversions are significantly more than were expected they are 
proposing to recoup more LA Formula Grant in 2011/12 and 2012/13 
where authorities have had higher numbers of academy converters.  
Due to the 7 schools converting Harrow now has one of the highest 
proportions of pupils in academies.  Consequently the adjustment 
proposed in the consultation will be detrimental to Harrow.  The extent 
of any further adjustment is unclear as there are so many unknown 
variables.  However if they look to recoup the full cost of the actual 
LACSEG paid to the 7 academies the council could potentially lose a 
further £775k of formula grant in addition to the £1m already top sliced.  

84



The DfE have yet to issue their updated proposals following the 
consultation.  

 
20. In addition, on 4 October 2011 the DfE issued a further consultation 

proposing to include school specific contingency in the DSG element of 
LACSEG.  A response has been submitted opposing this as it will 
result in the clawback of funding currently held for new high value 
costed statements and funding for additional classes and pupil growth. 

 
Risk Management Implications 
 
21. A project management approach was adopted to create a programme 

to meet the demanding timetable for the conversion to academy 
status. This included a risk log to record key risks and manage them 
as part of the programme governance.  

 
Section 5 - Equalities implications 
 
22. Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out?  Yes 
 
23. Equalities implications were considered throughout the process of the 

academy conversion and brought to the attention of the Governing 
Bodies as decision-makers in relation to the conversion.  

 
Section 6 - Corporate Priorities 
 
24. These considerations will support the Council’s Corporate Priorities for 

2011-2012: 
• United and involved communities: A Council that listens and leads. 
• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need. 

 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:    Emma Stabler X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date:      21 October 2011 

   
 
 
Section 7 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Johanna Morgan, Education Professional Lead, Education 
Strategy and School Organisation, 020 8736 6841. 
 
Background Papers:  Reports to Education Consultative Forum on 1 
March 2011, 6 April 2011 and 27 June 2011, and reports to Cabinet (all 
publicly available on Harrow Council website). 

85



86

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT FOR: 
 

EDUCATION 
CONSULTATIVE FORUM 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

7 November 2011 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT –  
Harrow Pupils’ Attainment and 
Progress: Summer 2011 
(Provisional) 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Catherine Doran, Corporate Director of 
Children’s Services 
 

Exempt: 
 

No  
 

Enclosures: 
 

None 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report sets out the provisional results for Harrow pupils in the relevant 
key stage assessments for their age in 2011. All are subject to further checks 
and revisions. Finally validated results are not available until early 2012. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 14 
Pages 87 to 94 

87



 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS): Ages 0-5 
 

• Standards have continued to rise in the EYFS in response to the priority given by 
schools and the LA to this area.  

• While standards have risen, the gap in attainment between the average and the 
lowest performing 20% has also narrowed.  

• The key indicator of the percentage achieving at least 78 points and who have at 
least 6 in PSE and CLL has shown a significant improvement since 2009. While 
children attaining well in this indicator are likely to do well by the end of Key Stage 1 
predictions should be treated with caution.  

• From 2007 to 2010 the EYFS outcomes in Harrow improved at a higher rate than 
the national average. 

 
Harrow EYFS Outcomes 2011 

(%) 
2010 
(%) 

2009 
(%) 

2011 results 
compared to 
2010 (2009) 

National 
2011 
(2010) 

% achieving at least 78+ 
AND 6+ in PSE AND CLL 56.2 53 50 3.2 (6.2) 59  

(53) 
LA % gap between 
median and bottom 20% 36.5 37.7 38.1 -1.2 (-1.6) 31.3 

(32.7) 
% achieving 6+ in Personal 
Social Emotional 
development (PSE) 

74.0 72 69 2.0 (5) 
 
79  
(77) 

% achieving 6+ in 
Communication Language 
and Literacy development 
(CLL) 

60.2 57 55 3.2 (5.2) 62 
(59) 

% achieving 6+ in PSE 
AND CLL 

 
56.2 

 
54.0 

 
50 

 
2.2 (6.2) 

 
59 
(56) 
 

% achieving 6+ in Problem 
Solving Reasoning and 
Numeracy (PRN) 

 
68.2 

 
66 

 
65 

 
2.2 (3.2) 

 
74 
(72) 

% achieving at least 78+ 
points across Foundation 
Stage Profile 

75.0 71.3 69.5 3.7 (5.5) 
 
79 
(77) 

 
Key Stage 1: Ages 5-7 
 

• Standards by the end of Key Stage 1 exceed national outcomes. Harrow has 
improved against all measures in 2011 while national averages have remained 
constant overall. 

• Harrow’s relative improvement is largely attributable to the improvement in boys’ 
reading and writing this year. Although boys have improved they continue to do less 
well than girls in English. They have caught up with girls in the numbers achieving 
the national standard for mathematics and continue to do better than girls at the 
higher level in mathematics. 

88



 

 

 
 

Harrow 2011 % of Pupils 
Attaining 

Boys Girls All 

Harrow 
2010  
(All 

Pupils) 

Harrow 
2011 

compared 
to 2010 

National 
2011 

National 
2010 

Reading L2+ 87 90 88.5 86 2.5 85 85 
Writing L2+ 83 89 85.6 84 1.6 81 81 
Maths L2+ 91 91 90.8 90 0.8 90 89 
Reading L3+ 26 32 29 28 1 26 26 
Writing L3+ 15 22 18 16 2 13 12 
Maths L3+ 28 23 25.6 24 1.6 20 20 
 
 
Key Stage 2: Ages 7-11 
 

• All Key Stage 2 outcomes show performance above national averages in 2011. 
• Standards continue to be above national averages in all areas and progress is 

broadly in line with the national average. 
• There has been a national fall in reading standards this year. The fall in standards 

in the higher level of reading in Harrow reflects the national picture.  
• Standards in writing have improved and more students are achieving the national 

expectation in mathematics.  
• There is a national recognition that the tests in writing need to be reviewed to better 

reflect the skills and understanding of pupils in this area.  
• From 2007 to 2010 Key Stage 2 outcomes in Harrow improved at a higher rate than 

the national average. 
• Harrow is ranked 2nd in London and 1st in Outer London for low levels of 

unauthorised absences in primary schools.  
• For overall level of absence Harrow is ranked 20th in London and 108th nationally. 

 
Harrow 2011 % of Pupils 

Attaining 
Boys Girls All 

Harrow 
2010 

Harrow 
2011 

compared 
to 2010 

National 
2011 

National 
2010 

English L4+ 81 88 84 85 -1 81 81 
English L5 25 37 31 38 -7 29 33 
Reading L4+ 83 89 86 87 -1 84 84 
Reading L5 39 48 43 55 -12 42 51 
Writing L4+ 73 83 78 76 2 75 71 
Writing L5 17 29 23 22 1 20 20 
Maths L4+ 84 81 83 82 1 80 80 
Maths L5 44 39 42 42 0 35 35 
Both Maths and 
English L4+ 76 78 77 77 0 74 74 
Both Maths and 
English L5 22 27 25 30 -5 21 23 
 

89



 

 

Adding Value from Key Stage 1 to Key Stage 2 (all schools with Year 6): 
 

• Pupils continue to make better progress from Key Stage 1 to 2 than the national 
average in both English and mathematics.  

 
 
% of Pupils Making 
Expected Progress 

2011 
Boys 

2011
Girls 

2011 
All 

Harrow
2010 

Harrow 
2011 

compared 
to 2010 

National 
2011 

National 
2010 

2 Levels of Progress 
in English 84 90 87 88 -1 83 83 
2 Levels of Progress  
in Maths  87 85 86 85 1 82 82 
 
 
Key Stage 4: Ages 14-16 
 

• Standards of attainment at Key Stage 4 continue to be significantly above the 
national average and Harrow’s schools continue to be among the highest 
performing nationally for adding value from Key Stage 2. 

• 5A*-C GCSEs including English and mathematics have improved on last year and 
are the highest achieved in the authority. This year shows Harrow’s year on year 
improvement in this measure comparable to, or better than, the best of previous 
years.  

• Provisionally, Harrow is placed 20th in the country for 5A*-C GCSEs including 
English and maths (27th in 2010), 6th in Outer London and 8th in London as a whole. 

• For the new English Baccalaureate measure Harrow is ranked 11th in the country 
(19th in 2010), 5th in Outer London and 6th in London as a whole. 

• A number of schools have achieved their best ever outcomes and all schools are 
well above the national standards, previously called floor targets. 

• Harrow is ranked joint 1st in London and joint 1st in Outer London for low level of 
unauthorised absences in secondary schools and 4th nationally. For overall level of 
absence Harrow is ranked 9th in London and 14th nationally. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

90



 

 

2011 2010  2011 2010  School 
% of 

students 
gaining 
5A*C 
grades, 
including 
Eng and 
Maths 

% of 
students 
gaining 
5A*C 
grades,  
including 
Eng and 
Maths 

2011 
results 

compared 
to 2010  

 
 
 

% of 
students 
gaining 
5A*C 
grades 

 
 

% of 
students 
gaining 
5A*C 
grades 

 
 

2011 
results 

compared 
to 2010 

 
 
 

Bentley  
Wood High 68.8 61 7.8 85.8 75 10.8 
Canons  
High 56.3 54 2.3 83.3 76 7.3 
Harrow High 41.4 31 10.4 78.4 75 3.4 
Hatch End High 52.8 55 -2.2 75.3 82 -6.7 
Nower Hill High 79.9 79 0.9 85.2 86 -0.8 
Park High 73.0 66 7.0 84.3 76 8.3 
Rooks Heath 
College 47.3 52 -4.7 76.8 82 -5.2 
The Sacred Heart 
Language College 85.5 77 8.5 91.7 89 2.7 
Salvatorian  
College 70.8 74 -3.2 75.4 76 -0.6 
Whitmore High 68.7 60 8.7 77.6 72 5.6 
Kingsley High 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Shaftesbury High 0 0 0 0 0 0 
 
Local Authority 
 

63.6 60.7 2.9 80 78.1 1.9 
 

91



 

 

Key GCSE Indicators over time 2008-2011 
 
This table should be read from left (past) to right (current). 
 
 
GCSE 
Performance 
Over Time 

2008 2009 2010 2011 
 

2011 
National 
(2010) 

% of students 
gaining 5A*-C 
(inc English 
and maths) 

57.7 60.8 60.7 63.6 57.9 
(53.4) 

% of students 
gaining 5 A*C 
grades 

69.5 75 78.1 80 80.1 
(75.4) 

% of students 
gaining any 
pass 

98.5 98.7 99.4 99 99.2 
(99.0) 

 
Adding Value from Key Stage 2 to Key Stage 4 (all secondary schools): 
 

• For the percentage of learners who have made expected progress in maths Harrow 
is ranked 7th in the country (6th in 2010), 3rd in Outer London and 4th in London as a 
whole. 

• For the percentage of learners who have made expected progress in English, 
Harrow is ranked 14th (10th in 2010) in the country, 8th in Outer London and 11th in 
London as a whole. 

• London authorities add considerable value and score well in the national tables. 
 
 
% of Students Making 
Expected Progress 

2011 
Harrow 

2011 
National 

2010  
Harrow 

2010 
National 

2009 
Harrow 

2009 
National 

Expected Progress in 
English 
 

79.2 71.7 79.0 69.9 77.4 65.3 
Expected Progress in 
mathematics 
 

78.4 64.7 77.0 62.5 75.2 58.4 
 
 
Key Stage 5: Ages 16-18 
 

• Harrow is ranked 2nd in the country for the percentage of candidates achieving 2 or 
more passes of A Level equivalent qualification. 

• Harrow is ranked 17th in the country for the percentage of candidates achieving 3 or 
more A*-A grades at GCE/Applied GCE A Level and Double Awards 

• Harrow is ranked 20th in the country for the percentage of candidates achieving 
AAB or more passes at GCE/Applied GCE A levels and Double Awards 

• Notes: The Achievement and Attainment Table relates to A2 Levels only. Results in 
Harrow do not include the return from post 16 Colleges. Harrow is a net exporter of 
6th Form students and a net importer of further education students. 

92



 

 

 
 

Schools Sixth 
Forms 2009 

 
Schools Sixth 
Forms 2010 

Schools Sixth 
Forms 2011 

National GCE A level 
examinations (3) 

% of 
Students 
Attaining 

School 
Figure 

A&AT (1) 
Figure 

School 
Figure 

A&AT 
Figure 

School 
Figure 

A&AT 
Figure 

2009 2010 2011 
A* - A - 18 (2) 22.5 21 24 19 26.8 26.9 27.1 
A* - B 46 44 48.9 48 52 47 51.9 52.1 52.7 
A* - C 78 75 74.4 73 77 73 75.1 75.6 23.8 
A* - G 99 97 98.2 97 99 97 98.1 

(A-E) 
98.3 

(A*-E) 
98.4 

(A*-E) 
 

(1) A&AT – Figures taken from the Achievement & Attainment school files 
(2) 2009 A*-A figures represents A grades only 
(3) National results – DfE’s Statistical First Release - sfr27-2011t10t11.xls 

 
 
 
Commentary on Provisional Performance Data for 2011: 
 
This data is supported by what inspectors say about our schools. Overall, 87% of Harrow’s 
schools are judged to be good or better and 46% to be outstanding. All secondary schools, 
seven of which have now converted to academy status, are judged good or outstanding.  
 
Performance at EYFS is improving in response to the priority given to this area. Improved 
attainment this year at EYFS and Key Stage 1 mark a clear change in Harrow’s 
performance. These key stages are performing much better in Harrow than in previous 
years.  
 
These data sets are subject to change as students who arrived late in schools are 
discounted from the published data. GCSE attainment might reasonably be expected to 
rise further as a result. In individual schools there can be year on year effects from 
different cohorts and raw attainment data should be seen alongside data on value-added 
for individual schools. As an example, although a school’s raw data may indicate lower 
standards the school could be adding considerable value to its intake each year. What 
Harrow does well, and does so consistently, is to add significant value. The longer children 
spend in our school system, the greater their average rate of progress.  
 
The percentage of young people aged 16-18 who are not in education, employment or 
training (NEET) in Harrow is the lowest in England at 2.7% (when the City of London and 
Isles of Scilly are not included). 
 
 
 

93



 

 

Section 3 – Further Information 
 
These results are subject to further checks and revisions. Finally validated results are not 
available until early 2012. At that time, an updated report will be made available. 
 
In light of national changes to performance indicators Education Strategy and School 
Organisation will review the content of future performance information reports and make 
any appropriate changes. 
 
Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
There are no financial comments in relation to this report. 
 
Section 5 – Equalities implications 
 
As this is an information report on progress and attainment in schools it does not require 
an Equality Impact Assessment. 
 

 
Section 6 – Corporate Priorities  
 
Please identify which corporate priority the report incorporates and how: 
 
• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need. 
 
Education plays a broad role in preparing Harrow’s young people for life and to help them 
make an informed and constructive contribution to society as adults. In particular schools 
seek to narrow those gaps in attainment that restrict opportunities in life for vulnerable 
individuals and groups.  
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Emma Stabler X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 21 October 2011 

   
 
Section 7 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
Contact:  Patrick O’Dwyer, Education Professional Lead, Education Strategy and School 
Organisation, 020 8736 6514 
 
Background Papers:  None 

94



 

 

REPORT FOR: 
 

EDUCATION 
CONSULTATIVE FORUM 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

Monday 7 November 2011 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT – The 
New Inspection Framework for 
Schools: January 2012 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Catherine Doran, Corporate Director of 
Children’s Services 
 

Exempt: 
 

No  
 

Enclosures: 
 

None 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report sets out the implications of the new OFSTED inspection 
framework and evaluation schedule for schools from January 2012, subject to 
Parliamentary approval when the Education Bill receives Royal Assent.  
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 15 
Pages 95 to 100 

95



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\5\2\AI00074253\$vgi0sujb.doc 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
2.1 The White Paper, ‘The Importance of Teaching’, and the Education Bill 

specify that the overall effectiveness of a school will, from January 
2012, be measured by OFSTED against four key judgements: 
Achievement, Quality of Teaching, Leadership and Management and 
Behaviour and Safety. There will be no other supporting judgements. 
The early years foundation stage (EYFS) and the 6th Form judgements 
will now be integrated into these four judgements. Inspectors will no 
longer report on community cohesion but other previously judged 
aspects are subsumed into the four new judgements and the 
judgement on overall effectiveness.  

 
2.2 While the new framework will be significantly slimmed down it is 

designed to raise expectations. The descriptors for ‘good’ and 
‘outstanding’ make this clear. The judgement on overall effectiveness 
also takes into account children’s spiritual, moral, social and cultural 
development and will emphasise the effectiveness of the leadership of 
teaching and the appropriateness of the curriculum to meet learners’ 
needs.  

 
2.3 During the last school year the new framework was trialled in 148 

schools. The feedback from this and the responses to the consultation, 
published in September, showed a general satisfaction with the new 
approach. Also in September additional guidance was published for 
categories of schools causing concern and a protocol for the selection 
of satisfactory schools for a monitoring inspection was published. The 
draft framework and schedule were published on 30 September 2011. 
In October OFSTED launched ‘Parent View’, an on-line questionnaire 
for parents and carers. It is unlikely that an inspection will take place 
solely on the feedback received through this means. 

 
2.4 Apart from the way the new judgements are organised, there are some 

important changes to the way different aspects of provision and 
leadership are evaluated.  Due to the greater emphasis placed on 
teaching, as much evidence as possible will be gathered through 
lesson observations to inform the four judgements. Greater attention 
will be paid to the voice of pupils, parents and staff, especially on 
behaviour and safeguarding, and there will be a greater focus on early 
reading and literacy. Where pupils are not reaching expected 
standards, inspectors will have particular regard to how synthetic 
phonics are being used to help pupils to make better progress. 

 
2.5 Progress and attainment will be measured for recent years and for 

pupils in school at the time of inspection. In the previous inspection 
framework, inspectors took into account the context of the school and 
its pupils when judging how effective the school was in helping pupils 
to make progress. CVA (Contextualised Value Added) will no longer be 
used as a measure although OFSTED will consider general information 
on the school’s context. Pupils’ progress will be measured on progress 

96



 

 

since the previous key stage (valued added) without taking into 
account their individual context. Greater emphasis will be given to the 
effectiveness of the school in increasing rates of progress for 
individuals and groups who are falling below expectations, particularly 
those groups who are poorly performing nationally and children who 
have a disability or a special educational need. Inspectors will seek 
answers to the questions; how effective is the school in narrowing gaps 
in attainment? How effective is the school in addressing the needs of 
learners who are not reaching expected standards in reading? 

 
2.6 The judgement on leadership takes greater overall account of how 

senior leaders lead on teaching, how they improve it, invest in 
professional development and have effective line management to 
improve its quality. There are higher expectations of working in 
partnership with other schools and agencies to improve teaching. 
Inspectors will want to see that school leaders are building the capacity 
to improve teaching and that this is having a positive impact on pupils’ 
outcomes. In most cases, but not always, a school that has an overall 
effectiveness judgement of outstanding will have teaching judged as 
outstanding. In recent inspections, the judgements on achievement and 
overall effectiveness have correlated more closely than those on 
attainment and overall effectiveness. The progress learners make 
therefore is a key factor in effective schools.  

 
2.7 Behaviour will be judged on whether or not it is conducive to learning 

and pupils are safe and free from bullying. Attendance and punctuality 
will be seen as signs of engagement with learning and will be linked to 
safety. The views of different stakeholders will be important as the 
inspectors intend to form a view of what behaviour is typically like. 
Although there will be no requirement to complete a self evaluation 
form, as previously provided by OFSTED, schools are expected to 
have some method of self evaluation and to be able to report their 
strengths and areas for development. This will be an important factor in 
the evaluation of leadership. 

 
2.8 Inspectors are still trialling a shorter period of time for monitoring the 

progress of schools in an OFSTED category of concern and for a 
percentage of schools previously judged as satisfactory. They may 
move to a monitoring visit after just three months and a full inspection 
after nine. Some schools could have no notice of an inspection if an 
area of concern relates to safeguarding or if behaviour was previously 
judged satisfactory or inadequate. 

 
2.9 The grade descriptors in the four areas are closely aligned and the 

judgements are therefore linked. However, the judgement on overall 
effectiveness does not insist on complete alignment but will depend on 
the professional judgement of inspectors. Schools could have similar 
grades in the four areas but have a different overall effectiveness 
judgement. This is a return to the independence of judgement that HMI 
had in the past. The last framework led inspectors to a judgement on 
overall effectiveness on the basis of a set of supporting judgements. 
This is, therefore, an important change. 

97



 

 

 

2.10 There are two key documents used for the inspection of schools; the 
framework and the evaluation schedule. The framework for school 
inspection shows how the general principles and processes are applied 
to inspections of maintained schools and several other types of school 
in England, including academies and free schools. The evaluation 
schedule provides outline guidance and grade descriptors for the 
judgements that inspectors will report on.  

 
2.11 The current cycle for inspection within three years will end for 

mainstream schools. In the new framework, schools that were judged 
to be outstanding in their last inspection will no longer be subject to 
routine inspections. Most of those judged good will have an inspection 
within five years. The new framework will mean that some schools who 
are not improving fast enough will have greater attention paid to them. 
An annual assessment may bring forward or defer an inspection. 
Further guidance is expected on how the risk assessments will be 
carried out by HMI. This assessment will be carried out by a HMI on 
the basis of the data available and other information, such as that 
revealed through ‘Parent View’. 

 
2.12 Schools are not exempt from the subject and themed surveys that 

OFSTED carry out.  Special schools and Pupil Referral Units will still 
have a three year cycle of inspection. Special schools that were judged 
to be outstanding in two previous inspections, and have the same 
headteacher in place, may also have their inspection deferred but they 
are not exempt from routine inspections. Schools will have an 
opportunity to request an inspection and the protocol for this will be 
available in the new year. OFSTED will be allowed to charge for these. 

 
 
Section 3 – Further Information 
 
3.1 The introduction of the new framework is dependent on the Education 

Bill being passed into law. Schools will be offered training on the new 
inspection framework and evaluation schedule through the Harrow 
School Improvement Partnership (HSIP). A further update will be 
provided to the Forum if the final framework and schedule differ from 
the draft. It is, however, unlikely to change significantly. 

 
3.2 Harrow schools have performed exceptionally well in previous cycles of 

inspection. We would expect our relative performance to continue to be 
of the highest standard. The impact of the new framework will be seen 
in the way that schools are judged through inspection and if there is an 
improvement in the standards achieved and the progress made by 
pupils. The Forum will receive summary annual reports on inspection 
judgements for Harrow schools and on standards. The latter report will 
include any progress measures available at the time of reporting. 

 
 

98



 

 

Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
4.1 There are no additional financial implications for the Council. If more 

schools are judged to be satisfactory, have a notice to improve or 
become subject to special measures there will be need for additional 
support. 

 
4.2 Education Strategy and School Organisation has commissioned the 

Harrow School Improvement Partnership (HSIP) to deliver this support 
to all schools causing concern and the budget for this is in place. 

 
 
Section 5 - Equalities implications 
 
5.1 This is an information only report. This change is brought about 

through new primary legislation and the responsibility for the 
framework rests with Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector of Schools (HMCI). 

 
Section 6 – Corporate Priorities  
 
6.1 These considerations will support the Council’s Corporate Priority: 
 

• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need. 
 
6.2 The new framework will give greater emphasis to meeting the needs of 

individuals and groups of learners who are disadvantaged or 
experience barriers to their learning and who are not making sufficient 
progress in order to narrow the gap in attainment with their peers. 

 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Emma Stabler X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 21 October 2011 

   
 
 
 

99



 

 

Section 7 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:   
Patrick O’Dwyer, Education Professional Lead,  
Education Strategy and School Organisation  
020 8736 6514 
 
 
Background Papers:   
 
The new draft framework and schedule can be found at: 
 
The Draft Framework for the Inspection of Schools 
 
http://www.ofsted.gov.uk/resources/draft-framework-for-school-inspection-
january-2012  
 
 
The Draft Evaluation Schedule 
 
http://www.ofsted.gov.uk/resources/draft-evaluation-schedule-for-inspection-
of-maintained-schools-and-academies-january-2012  
 
 
 
 

100


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	10 Primary School Expansion Programme and Related School Organisation Issues
	Annexe A Primary School Expansion Programme Consultation document
	Background Paper 1 - School Roll Projections 2012-2021
	Background Paper 2 - Schools and PPAs
	Background Paper 3 - Schools in the Primary Planning Areas

	11 INFORMATION REPORT - Local Authority Strategic Role for Education in Harrow - Update Paper
	Annexe A - Summary of the DfE Schools White Paper and Education Bill Implications

	12 INFORMATION REPORT - Outcomes of Rising 5 and 11+ allocations for 2011-12
	Admissions Appendix 1 - Appendix 1 allocation to reception classes in Harrow™s community primary schools
	Admissions Appendix 2 - Admissions to High School 11+ for the 2011-12 Academic Year

	13 INFORMATION REPORT - Academies update
	14 INFORMATION REPORT - Harrow Pupils' Attainment and Progress: Summer 2011 (Provisional)
	15 INFORMATION REPORT - The New Inspection Framework for Schools: January 2012

